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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBREE

REVENUE Uz

RMB524.6m
RMB1,142.9m

° ° ° ° ° ° ° ° °
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Il Construction service Sewage treatment operation I Equipment operation service Il Others
EEERRTE EIKERIBETE BB ARTE Hith

GROSS PROFIT £ 7|

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A318LLEE
2022 2021

20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTT
Construction service BERS (55,030) 44,453
Equipment operation service RIBEL RS 63,623 85,413
Sewage treatment operation VSRR IR FET 647 696
Others HAit 65 1,451
Overall b 9,305 132,013

GROSS PROFIT MARGINS EFl &

% 2021
% 20214

Construction service BERE (17.6) 5.2
Equipment operation service JiEEL RS 31.1 35.0
Sewage treatment operation VEUNEBEES 12.7 13.5
Others Hfth 3.9 37
Overall e 1.8 11.6
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KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS = EB KR

GEARING RATIO BEXRB &L RO

2022% 24.6%

° ° ° ° ° °

0.0 10.0 20.0 30.0 40.0 50.0

RETURN ON EQUITY B EHER®

20225 21.9% ‘

Financial Highlights
MBREE

CURRENT RATIO #iEjtE &>

2022%F 15

20214 } 15
°

0.0 20 4.0 6.0 8.0

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS #&EE@HR

20 o ( 20 e ‘

° [ ] ° [ ] L] ° L] ° ° ° ° ° ° ° °
-25.0% -20.0% -15.0%-10.0% -5.0% 0.0% 5.0% 10.0% -10.0% -80% -6.0% -4.0% -20% 0.0% 2.0%

Notes:

ks

1) Gearing ratio is calculated based on the net debts (including interest-bearing loans and borrowings, and payables for acquisition of equipment by
instalments, less cash and cash equivalents) divided by the equity as at the end of reporting period and multiplied by 100%.
BEARABEERDRFAREEASEFREFARADANTBEARBNENRERRE LRSS EY HIARZERE HROE R BERIA100%TH
[E

2) Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities.
MOLEERRBEERUTBARS -

3) Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the opening balance of total equity and multiplied by 100%.
EREREERFARFERAE R BEF LR EIR100%TEB T o

4) Return on total assets equals profit for the year divided by the opening balance of total assets and multiplied by 100%.
BEELCREERFNFBRUEEBEFTERBRUI00%TEB T ©
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFEHRE

Chairman and k

Executive Director :
TEFENTESE -

Mr. Xun Minghong
BRALE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Jianzhong Construction Development Limited (the “Company”), |
hereby present to you the annual results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the vyear ended
31 December 2022.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's primary focus
was on improving its liquidity position. To achieve this, the Group
reduced capital expenditures and disposed of idle property, plant,
and equipment. The payments for the purchase of property, plant,
and equipment decreased by approximately 90.1% from around
RMB290.4 million in the year ended 31 December 2021 to around
RMB28.7 million in the year ended 31 December 2022. In contrast,
the proceeds from the disposal of property, plant, and equipment
increased by approximately 89.4%, from approximately RMB48.3
million in the year ended 31 December 2021 to around RMB91.5
million in the year ended 31 December 2022. These actions indicate
that the Group was actively managing its assets to improve its
financial position.

While at the same time, the Group’s net cash used in financing
activities, which mainly measures the net cash used in repayment of
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loans and other borrowings, increased from around RMB139.7 million
in the year ended 31 December 2021 to around RMB217.6 million in
the year ended 31 December 2022, thereby reducing the amounts of
debts as at 31 December 2022. Consequently, the Group's gearing
ratio decreased from 40.6% as of 31 December 2021 to 24.6% as of
31 December 2022.

Given the current sentiment of the real estate sector in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"), the Group became more cautious in
tendering new construction projects, which led to the decrease in
revenue from provision of construction service. Moreover, as the
repayment from the Group’s customers did not improve in the
second half of 2022, the Group expects that less construction
revenue will be generated in the future. This indicates that the
property, plant and equipment of the Group may be impaired. The
Group assessed the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment, which mainly comprise machinery, equipment, and tools,
as at 31 December 2022. An impairment loss of approximately
RMB93.4 million (2021: Nil) was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2022 to reduce the value of the property, plant and
equipment to their recoverable amount.

Despite recording a net loss for the year, the Group was able to
generate a net operating cash inflow of approximately RMB211.5
million (2021: approximately RMB274.2 million), resulting from the
effort to recover outstanding receivables from customers. However,
the Group recognised additional amount of loss allowance in respect
of trade and other receivables and contract assets of approximately
RMB70.0 million (2021: approximately RMB138.3 million) during the
year ended 31 December 2022, to reflect the increased credit risk of
the Group’s debtors.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to focus on strengthening
its liquidity condition, collecting debts from its customers, and
increasing utilisation rate of its assets. On behalf of the Board, |
would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers and employees for their ongoing support.

Mr. Xun Minghong
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian, 31 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a construction services provider based in Fujian
Province, the PRC. The construction services provided by the Group
include general construction works as a main contractor and sub-
contractor works (“Construction service”). The Group also has an
extensive fleet of construction machinery and equipment, which
enables itself to handle complicated and/or sizable construction
works, thus allowing itself to capture more opportunities in the
construction market and engage in construction machinery,
equipment and tools leasing services. The Group also engages in
provision of equipment operation service, sales of construction
materials, and operates a sewage treatment plant in the PRC. The
Group has developed as a regional construction works service
provider in Fujian and has further extended the footprint across a
number of other provinces in the PRC.

In view of the current economic condition, the primary focus of the
Group is to improve liquidity position and to retain more cash to
cope with the challenging operating environment. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group became more cautious in
tendering new construction projects, which led to a decline in
revenue from construction service. The revenue from construction
service decreased by approximately RMB541.2 million, or
approximately 63.3%, as compared to the year ended 31 December
2021, from approximately RMB854.8 million to approximately
RMB313.6 million.

Moreover, during the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group has
adopted certain cost reduction measures to reduce administrative
and other expenses. Comparing to the year ended 31 December
2021, the research and development costs reduced by
approximately 67.6%, from approximately RMB62.9 million to
approximately RMB20.4 million. On the other hand, the
administrative and other expenses decreased by approximately 4.3%,
from approximately RMB65.1 million to approximately RMB62.3
million.

In addition, the Group has reduced the capital expenditure during
the year ended 31 December 2022. The payments for purchase of
property, plant and equipment reduced from approximately
RMB290.4 million during the year ended 31 December 2021 to
approximately RMB28.7 million during the year ended 31 December
2022.
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PROSPECTS

The construction industry in the PRC is highly fragmented and there
are opportunities for the Group to further develop its businesses.
However, given current economic environment, the Group will
continue to focus on improving its liquidity condition whilst
developing new business opportunities, with the view to create long
term value for the shareholders.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed in this announcement, there was no significant
subsequent event took place.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the overall revenue of the
Group has decreased by approximately RMB618.3 million, or
approximately 54.1%, as compared to the year ended 31 December
2021, from approximately RMB1,142.9 million to approximately
RMB524.6 million.

To preserve more cash under current economic environment, the
Group became more cautious in tendering new construction
projects, which led to a decline in revenue from Construction
service. The revenue from Construction service decreased by
approximately RMB541.2 million, or approximately 63.3%, as
compared to the year ended 31 December 2021, from approximately
RMB854.8 million to approximately RMB313.6 million.

Revenue from provision of leasing services of construction
machinery, equipment and tools, and equipment operation service
("Equipment operation service”) decreased by approximately RMB39.5
million, or approximately 16.2%, from approximately RMB243.8
million in the year ended 31 December 2021, to approximately
RMB204.3 million in the year ended 31 December 2022.

In terms of percentage of total revenue, the revenue from provision
of sewage treatment service (“Sewage treatment operation”) and
sales of construction materials and others (“Others”) remained stable
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEFWED

Cost of sales

Cost of sales mainly comprises of material cost, labour
subcontracting fee, depreciation and others. During the year ended
31 December 2022, as a result of the decline in revenue, the overall
cost of sales of the Group has decreased by approximately
RMB495.6 million, or approximately 49.0% compared to the year
ended 31 December 2021, from approximately RMB1,010.9 million to
approximately RMB515.3 million.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Set out below is the breakdown of the gross profit and gross profit
margins of our Group by business segment and work type during the
year under review and the corresponding year in 2021:

HER A&

HERAFEREMBEAN - 808 I
ENHEM HZE202F12A31BLEE - #
RWRE TR AEENRBHERARES
202112 A31B EFEMHARE1,01098
BIURADOAREA95 6 A8 T #149.0% E4)
ARMSI53AETT -

EAREANE
REEFER202IFREFEREBDBR
TREVSBNAEEEFRENLAER
S

For the year ended 31 December

HZE12A31BLEE

2022 2021

20224 20214
RMB’000 GP% RMB’000 GP%
AR® T EFNR% PN R EFE%
construction services BRERS (55,030) (17.6) 44,453 5.2
Equipment operation service HBEL R 63,623 31.1 85,413 35.0
Sewage treatment operation VSRR ETS 647 12.7 696 135
Others Efh 3.9 1,451 3.7
9,305 1.8 132,013 1.6
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's overall gross
profit margin decreased by 9.8 percentage point, from 11.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 to 1.8% for the year ended 31
December 2022. The decrease in overall gross profit margin was
mainly due to the decrease in gross profit margin of Construction
service, as a result of the combined effect of the following:

due to significant decrease in revenue for Construction service
in the year ended 31 December 2022, the gross profit margin
was significantly impacted by fixed costs, mainly depreciation.
Despite having similar sized machinery and equipment
compared to the previous year, the depreciation for idle
machinery and equipment recognised in the cost of sales had
larger impact on the gross profit margin in the year ended
31 December 2022. The Group is disposing off idle machinery
and equipment to improve operation efficiency;

certain customers demanded reduction in final contract sum for
certain construction projects, to compensate for delays in
construction works or any extra costs incurred; and

pursuant to relevant accounting standards and policies adopted
by the Group, construction revenue is recognised progressively
over time using the output method, based on direct
measurements of the value of contract work performed, whilst
costs for construction services are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred. During the year ended 31 December
2022, a relatively high portion of construction projects of the
Group, as compared to the corresponding period in 2021, went
through completion phases, in which a relatively lower gross
profit margin is generally recorded since revenue has been
recognised in earlier stage of the projects according to the
progress certificates issued by customers while certain
unbillable costs, such as inspection costs and costs to make
good of defects in relation to works done by the Group in
such projects, were incurred in the completion phases.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEEFWED T

Other net (loss)/income

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group recorded other
net loss of approximately RMB56.1 million (2021. net gain of
approximately RMB51.2 million). The other net loss recorded for the
year ended 31 December 2022 was mainly attributable to the
recognition of impairment loss on property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMB93.4 million (2021: Nil), offset by the gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment of approximately RMB30.9
million (2021: approximately RMB40.6 million).

In view of the weak sentiment of the real estate sector in the PRC,
and the slowdown of repayment from the Group’s customers in the
second half of 2022, the Group expects that less construction
revenue will be generated in the future. This indicates that the
property, plant and equipment of the Group may be impaired. As a
result, the Group assessed the recoverable amount of the property,
plant and equipment, which mainly includes machinery and
equipment, and tools, as at 31 December 2022. An impairment 10ss
was recognised for the year ended 31 December 2022 to reduce the
value of the property, plant and equipment to their recoverable
amount of approximately RMB420.5 million.

The recoverable amount of these assets were estimated based on
value in use calculations. The calculations were carried out by an
independent valuer using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management, which cover the estimated
remaining useful life of the assets. To account for the expected
reduction in construction revenue, these cash flow projections use
sales growth rate of —63% and 3% for the first two vyears,
respectively, and 0% for the next three years. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations include gross profit
margins estimated on the basis of historical performance and
management’s expectation of the market development. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 0% sale growth
rate. These sales growth rates are based on the Group’'s budget,
future business plan and forecasts of relevant industries, and do not
exceed the average long-term sales growth rate for the relevant
industries. The cash flows are discounted using a 14.5% pre-tax
discount rate, which was determined by the weighted average cost
of capital.
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Administrative and other expenses

The administrative and other expenses mainly include staff cost,
professional fees and office expenses. The administrative and other
expenses decreased by approximately RMB2.8 million from RMB65.1
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB62.3 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the Group has adopted certain cost reduction
measures, such as streamlining headcount and restructuring of
renumeration packages, to reduce the administrative and other
expenses.

Research and development costs

The research and development costs mainly include (i) staff costs; (ii)
and raw materials costs. In view of recent market condition, the
Group has kept the research and development activities at minimum
level, which led to a decrease in research and development costs by
approximately RMB42.5 million from RMB62.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to RMB20.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2022.

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables and
contract assets

As part of the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into
contracts with its customers in connection to (a) Construction
service; and (b) Equipment operation service. Such customers are
mainly real estate companies or main contractors in the PRC.
According to the payment terms in the contracts, the Group is
entitled to request for progress payments that are usually measured
by reference to a prescribed percentage of the certified amount of
work completed. Retention money may be retained by the
customers in order to secure the due performance under the
contract. Accordingly, the Group's credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade receivables, bills receivable and contract assets.
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The following table sets out the breakdown of trade receivables, bills  TXREHIIAREE S IR TR BHNZ 5
receivable and contract assets of the Group as at the dates FUIE -  BWZEENMAHEERMA:
indicated, respectively:

As at As at
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
720225 20214
12H31H 12H31H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBFIT
Contract assets (as disclosed in the BHEE (REBHI BN
consolidated statement of financial position) — Z#%5) 280,659 470,144
Trade and bills receivables, net of loss 8 5 W IE N R ik
allowance (as disclosed in note 16 to the (FABR 1B K2 E)
consolidated financial statements) (RE-E 5%
Brat16 7% &) 635,613 737,895

Net carrying amount of trade receivables, bills & 3 EWHIE - EREER

receivable and contract assets EHNEEREFE 916,272 1,208,039
Add: loss allowance for ECLs (as disclosed in  jn : JBE{E EBLMIEL

note 27 to the consolidated financial il (RRE M EHRE

statements) Bt 5E27 4 55 ) 222,816 217,660

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables, RETEEMEEBRLANEL

bills receivable and contract assets used EHERBREEREFAN

under the provision matrix in relation to the ¥ 3 EWNKE - EWRE

calculation of the loss allowance for ECL FANEENREAR 1,139,088 1,425,699
Add: individual loss allowance for customers A0 : &P (@R 18 Kk EH 136,895 84,339

Gross carrying amount of trade receivables, EZEWKIE - EKREERK
bills receivable and contract assets EHNEEREAE 1,275,983 1,510,038

As indicated below, among the gross carrying amount of trade I TNXFiR @ EHENFIE EREHE LA
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets of approximately #HEEMBETAENAREK1,2760EE T
RMB1,276.0 million (2021: approximately RMB1,510.0 million), (20214 : &S A R#1,51005 BL)+ - HHA
approximately RMB814.4 million (2021: approximately RMB843.5 R#¥814.4H Bt (20214 : ) AR ¥ES435H
million) was past due. In particular, two of the Group's major &)@ - LHE AEEHMETIER
customers, namely Customer A and Customer B, contributed F (BIEFAREFB)DRIECBEE S EK
approximately 58.6% and 11.0% (2021: approximately 53.6% and B BEREELRANEENEAAEY
12.5%) of the total gross carrying amount of trade receivables, bills  58.6% 5.11.0% (20214 : #753.6% %% 12.5%) °
receivable and contract assets which was past due, respectively.
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The following sets out the breakdown of the gross carrying amount FX &I BEFBHMNE FEWZE - BIRE
of trade receivables, bills receivable and contract assets which was ENA X EERMREAAER4

past due by customers:

Listing
status As at As at
(Y/N) 31 December 2022 31 December 2021
EFmARR
(R/&) R2022512831R R2021%12 8318
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥T R ARET T
State-owned enterprises EAELX
customer A EFA Y 2 476,840 58.6 452,174 53.6
Other state-owned customers”? HibEAFZEW 94,721 11.6 107,042 12.7
Sub-total INEE 571,561 70.2 559,216 66.3
Non-state-owned enterprises ~ FEIH %
customer B XFB Y 2 89,801 11.0 105,853 12.5
Other non-state owned HiERAERFQ
customers®? 153,033 18.8 178,452 21.2
Sub-total INEE 242,834 29.8 284,305 337
Total #et 814,395 100.0 843,521 100.0
Notes: BEE -

(1) Other state-owned customers included a total of 34 entities (2021: 26 (1)
entities), each of which accounted for less than 4.0% (2021: 3.5%) of
the above total amount as at 31 December 2022.

2) Other non-state owned customers included a total of 280 entities (2021:  (2)
244 entities), each of which accounted for less than 3.0% (2021: 5.0%)
of the above total amount as at 31 December 2022.

MR2022F12A31H - HtBEEREFREA &
BAREEE (20214F 1 26REEE) - BEUNLES
B it 48 £ 58 F)4.0% (20214 : 3.5%) °

MR2022%12A31H - HM3EEERFBES
HOR0KEE (20214F : 204K E82) - B@D
¥ZB8MbMLLlRaeETH3.0%(2021F ¢
5.0%) °

BEERBRARAT —Bo-FEH @
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The following sets out the background information of Customer A TXHIEBEFAREFBHE &R :

and Customer B:

Customer A

EEA

Customer B

ZFB

A state-owned enterprise which mainly carries out business management activities
through a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (“Customer A’s Principal
Operating Subsidiary”), which in turn has seven subsidiaries which are listed on the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange or Shenzhen Stock Exchange, as well as more than 100
investment-holding subsidiaries. To the best knowledge of the Directors after making
reasonable enquiries, for the six months ended 30 June 2022, Customer A’s Principal
Operating Subsidiary recorded a total revenue and net profit attributable to equity owners
which amounted to approximately RMB1,060.8 billion and RMB28.5 billion, respectively.
RZFXBEBERLE AFrZ2@AR MR EEEARSMETHNAR(BEFANEZELERE
RADFEEBER RS  ZRREEREBBIAIRINZBEFRZ A L REHB R
AARI00Z KR EERMB AR - BEFMEHAEERRATAM - BE2022F6 H30H
IERER  BEFANFELENBARINAKRA MIEREA ARGFNEI RN A/ARE
10,6088 7C 2 A R #2858 7T ©

A group of companies which are subsidiaries of a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange which is engaged in real estate development, property management and
construction of public infrastructure. To the best knowledge of the Directors after making
reasonable enquiries, for the six months ended 30 June 2022, such parent company
recorded a total revenue and net profit amounting to approximately RMB2.1 billion and
RMB37.7 million, respectively.

H—HAREEEARGM ETATANMBEARIAKNARIER  ZARKERMERE
MEEBERAAERRIBER - BEFWMEL S B EREMMAM - BE2022F6 A30H 1E
NEA - ZERARMARERFNESIAORARE2IEBETRARKEII7TEET

Loss allowance for ECLs JEHIEBEL IR ER

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables, bills FR&E@EGZERNFESEREZEBLANESE
receivable and contract assets at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS, 28 5EKNIE BUEBERANEEY
which is calculated using a provision matrix. Such loss allowances — jgzc{g - WA BBt - SEZE FEW
on trade and bills receivables, and contract assets only reflect the 15 EWEERANEENBLAERER
Group's credit risk as at the reporting date, and were subject to mAEBEAREABEHEERR @ B#ETR
subsequent remeasurement reflecting the developments thereafter. MEBERERNEESHIS -

As at the reporting date, the expected credit losses for bills RIB{ERE  HAREREZEEEAYEELES
receivable and contract assets were calculated by applying the JELUKEZEERBRES  WHEEH ZEEBLB
expected loss rate of trade receivables within the extended payment @4 A EERS X HR AM E 5 fE W B TE
period to the outstanding balances of bills receivables and contract HjigskRER N ENZE R AN EENFE
assets, as they have similar credit risk characteristics. IBAREAETE o
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The following briefly illustrates the Group’s calculation of the loss
allowance for ECLS:

Step 1 — Categorisation of customers based on risk characteristic

The Group categorises customers based on their risk characteristic.
In addition, based on the ageing report as at the reporting date, the
Group’s trade receivables were categorised into three time bands,
“trade receivables within the extended payment period”, “trade
recelvables exceeding the extended payment period by less than 1
year” and “trade receivables exceeding the extended payment
period by more than 1 year".
Note: The Group is entitled to request for progress payments that are usually
measured by reference to a prescribed percentage of the certified
amount of work completed according to the payment terms in the
contracts. However, in practice, it normally takes months to complete
the settlement of trade receivables due to the administrative process
of different customers. Therefore, the Group generally grants an
extended payment period based on the background of its customers
— for stated-owned enterprises, 6 months from the issuance of
progress certificates; for private entities, 3 months from the issuance
of progress certificates.

Step 2 — Determination of expected loss rate for trade receivables

The Group first determined the expected loss rates for customers
with different backgrounds and credit rating (if any), which was
derived from historical observed default rates, adjusted by the
growth rate of non-performing loans in the construction sector,
which reflected the increased credit risk of the construction sector,
as published by the China Banking and Insurance Regulatory
commission (FEIRITIRMEEEETIREZE ).

The expected loss rates for trade receivables in the other time
bands were further determined based on the expected loss rate for
the trade receivables exceeding the extended payment period by
more than one year and roll rates. The Group derived roll rates
based on historical ageing data, which represented the percentages
of trade receivables that are not received in a time band and thus
have rolled to the next time band, and reflected the probability of
loss for trade receivables in each time band.

Step 3 — Construct the provision matrix to calculate the loss
allowance for ECLs

With all parameters fixed, the Group constructed a provision matrix
by applying the expected loss rate of each time band to the
respective outstanding balances of trade receivables to compute the
loss allowance for ECL for trade receivables as at the reporting
date.

JEU 3
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The following tables sets out information about the Group’'s TFREIIAEERHRBHNE SEUWGRIA -
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables, bills EWEHRFANEEMERNEERR LTE
receivable and contract assets as at the dates indicated: HEEBXER

31 December 2022
2022%12H318

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount

BEHBEAR SRE#E BREE fREE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR¥TR AR®TR

Current (not past due) BVHER (R HR) 11.5 324,692 (37,406) 287,286
Less than 12 months past due  #EHI 1218 A 17.9 370,706 (66,501) 304,205
More than 12 months past due #EHEB B 1218 A 26.8 443,690 (118,909) 324,781

1,139,088 (222,816) 916,272

31 December 2021
2021F12A31H

Gross
Expected carrying Loss Carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
TEHAfE K & REBE B FREE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTIT ARETT

Current (not past due) BIER (R HA) 11.5 569,843 (65,658) 504,185
Less than 12 months past due  #EHEF D121 A 11.8 518,736 (61,029) 457,707
More than 12 months past due #EHiEB B 1218 A 28.0 324,785 (90,973) 233,812

1,413,364 (217,660) 1,195,704

In particular, the loss allowance for ECLs made in respect of JEZ R2022F12A31H BEFARE
Customer A and Customer B as at 31 December 2022 amounted to  FB:TIEHFBHIZE BB kMIBREFEH B AL
approximately RMB142.0 million and RMB Nil (2021: approximately AR®14208&E TR ARBZIT (20214 : 49
RMB149.9 million and RMBO0.8 million), respectively, representing ARM1499BE TR ARKOSHEET) ' &
approximately 63.7% and 0.0% (2021: approximately 68.9% and B8 K EE B FE463.7% X% 0.0% (20214 :
0.3%) of the total loss allowance made, respectively. #968.9% %0.3%) °
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In addition to above provision matrix, the Group has made individual
loss allowance for certain real estate developers in the PRC. As at
31 December 2022, the gross carrying amount of trade receivables,
bills receivable and contract assets in respect of these real estate
developers was approximately RMB136.9 million (2021: approximately
RMB96.7 million). The Board are aware of a series of negative news
and announcements over the financial conditions of these real
estate developers. In this regard, and taking into account the recent
repayment records, the Board decided to make full individual loss
allowance on the trade receivables, bills receivable and contract
assets of the construction projects related to these real estate
developers.

Together with the individual loss allowance made to certain other
receivable balances of approximately RMB12.2 million (2021: Nil), as
at 31 December 2022, the accumulated individual loss allowance
was RMB149.1 million (2021: RMB84.3 million).

To reduce the exposure of credit risk, the Group has ceased
tendering for construction project with these real estate developers,
and has taken legal actions against certain subsidiaries of certain of
the real estate developers to recover the remaining balances.

The following table (as disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements) sets out the movement in the loss allowance
account in respect of trade and other receivables and contract
assets during the year:
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A3MBE ElZEEHERERNE HER
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AE#136. 9B 8T (2021F : HYARMESTH
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MEO—ZNEEHERAE - LM E - &5
MAHMERCH EFTCREREZXER
HERZEEABNEETEE NE 5 EUWGRIE
JEWEE R A LS ERSEHRERIB R ERE -

ERYE A THEMERRELESTHRNERE
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Year ended 31 December

BZE12A318LLEE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R N R
Balance at 1 January R1TATE®E% 301,999 163,765
Amounts written off during the year F A E 2 RE — (110)
Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss 4 RHME 25 HE R BRI E
during the vyear: &g
— individual loss allowance — {BIRIE K 24 64,798 83,653
— loss allowance for ECLS — BEEEELMIEX
A 5,156 54,691
Balance at 31 December W12 A31 B H) A &R 371,953 301,999
BRERRRRARAT —B-—FER @
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Factors, events and circumstances leading to the recognition of
ECLs

The amount of loss allowance for ECLs increased from approximately
RMB217.7 million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately
RMB222.8 million as at 31 December 2022, which was particularly
due to that more long aged debtors were recorded as at 31
December 2022.

Subsequent settlement in respect of trade receivables, bill
receivable and contract assets

During the period from 1 January 2023 to 20 March 2023, there was
settlement of the trade and bills receivables that amounted to
approximately RMB87.2 million, which represented approximately
9.6% of the gross trade and bills receivables balance as at 31
December 2022. All of the subsequent settlements were in cash.

In particular, in respect of Customer A and Customer B,
approximately RMB28.8 million and RMB16.5 million, representing
approximately 5.8% and 18.4% of their respective gross trade and
bills receivables balance as at 31 December 2022 was settled during
the period from 1 January 2023 to 20 March 2023, respectively.

Measures taken by the Group in respect of the matter

After the Directors became aware of the increasing exposure of the
Group to ECLs, when the Group entered into agreements with
customers during the ordinary course of business, the Group has
adopted a more prudent approach in tendering for new construction
projects. The Group has established a credit risk management policy
under which credit evaluations are performed on each of the
customers. These evaluations focus on the customer’s history of
making payments and current ability to pay. The Group’s customers
are mainly real estate companies or main contractors in the PRC.
Before tendering for contracts with new customers, the Group
performed background check (e.g. shareholders’ background) and
credit assessment (e.g. financial information of publicly listed
companies) to evaluate the creditworthiness of the new customers.
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In addition, the Group has its debt collection policy, under which it is
the responsibility of the finance and accounts department, the
business administration department and the respective project
management units to confirm and follow up the outstanding debts
with the customers. The amounts of construction work performed
are assessed and confirmed by the business administration
department and respective project management units on a monthly
basis. Taking into account the progress payment, if any, made by
each of the individual customers, a written payment request and
official invoice are issued to each customer to request for payment
of the remaining balance. The business administration department
and respective project management units will continue to follow up
the outstanding debts. If the debt is outstanding for 90 days or
more, the project manager of the relevant project management unit
is advised for review and follow up. If payment is not received after
180 days past due, the following factors will be considered before
proceeding with any legal action:

— financial position of the debtor;

— alternative to legal action;

— time and legal cost to recover the amount; and
— long-term relationship with the customer.

Finance costs

Our finance costs mainly represented (i) interests on bank loans and
other borrowings; (i) interest on acquisition of equipment by
instalments; and (iii) finance charges on sale and leaseback
transactions.

The finance costs decreased by RMB10.0 million from RMB34.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 to RMB24.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Income tax in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss

As a result of the recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities for
depreciation, impairment loss for property, plant and equipment and
credit loss allowances, the Group recognised income tax credit of
approximately RMB8.2 million during the year ended 31 December
2022 (2021: approximately RMB24.0 million).

In December 2022, lJianzhong Construction Technology, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the state-level
approval for its application of High-tech Enterprise qualification and
was granted the qualification with effect from 14 December 2022. In
accordance with the CIT Law, the High-tech Enterprise qualification
will be valid for a period of three years from 2022 to 2024 and
entitles Jianzhong Construction Technology to a reduced tax rate at
15% during this period.

In December 2020, Fujian Yantu (originally named “Fujian Jinghai
Engineering Service Co., Ltd.”), another indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, obtained the state-level approval for its
application of High-tech Enterprise qualification and was granted the
qualification with effect from 1 December 2020. In accordance with
the CIT Law, the High-tech Enterprise qualification will be valid for a
period of three years from 2020 to 2022 and entitles Jianzhong
Yantu to a reduced tax rate at 15% during this period.

The Group's other subsidiaries in the PRC is subject to PRC statutory
corporate income tax of 25%.

Loss for the year and loss per share

As a result of the foregoing, the Group incurred net loss for the year
of approximately RMB216.1 million (2021. approximately RMB94.0
million).

Basic and diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2022 were RMBO0.35 (2021: RMBO0.15 per share).
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a solid financial position as at 31 December
2022. During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's
operation and capital requirements were financed principally through
a combination of cash flows generated from the operating activities
and bank and other borrowings. As at 31 December 2022, the Group
had cash and cash equivalent of approximately RMB149.8 million
(2021: approximately RMB93.0 million) in which approximately
RMB1.5 million (2021. RMBO0.1 million) equivalent cash were
denominated in Hong Kong dollar. The remaining balance of cash
and cash equivalent were denominated in Renminbi. As at 31
December 2022, the Group had net current asset of approximately
RMB374.2 million, representing an decrease of approximately
RMB97.9 million as compared to that of approximately RMB472.1
million as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the gearing ratio of the Group, calculated
based on the net debts (including interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, lease liabilities and payables for acquisition of
equipment by instalments, less cash and cash equivalents) divided
by the equity as at the end of reporting period and multiplied by
100%, was approximately 24.6% (2021: approximately 40.6%).

All the Group’s loans and borrowings were denominated in
Renminbi. As at 31 December 2022, loans and borrowings, lease
liabilities and payables for acquisition of equipment by instalments of
approximately RMB280.7 million were fixed rate borrowings (2021:
approximately RMB368.3 million). Particulars of loans and borrowings
of the Group are set out in note 21 to the consolidated financial
Statements.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT

The Group has a sufficient level of cash and banking facilities for the
conduct of its trade in the normal course of business. The
management of the Group closely reviews trade receivable balances
and any overdue balances on an ongoing basis and only trade with
creditworthy parties. The management of the Group closely monitors
the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of
the Group's assets, liabilities and commitments can meet its funding
requirements to manage liquidity risk.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group acquired items
of property, plant and equipment with a cost of RMB13.5 million
(2021: RMB295.4 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEE R WD T

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had no significant capital
commitments, which had been contracted but not provided for in the
financial statements (2021: approximately RMB12.4 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2022 (2021: Nil).

MATERIAL INVESTMENT HELD BY THE GROUP

There was no significant investment held by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

As of the date of this report, the Group did not have plans for
material investments and capital assets in the coming year.

CHARGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of the machinery
and equipment pledged for the sale and leaseback transactions were
RMB127.5 million (2021: RMB196.7 million); machinery and equipment
of RMB118.6 million (2021: RMB147.2 million) were pledged for bank
loans and other borrowings; and bank deposits of RMB19.4 million
(31 December 2021: RMB52.2 million) were pledged to banks as
security for bank loans and other borrowings, litigation and bills
payable.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group has a total of 256 full-time
employees (2021: 483). The Group has developed its human
resources policies and procedures to determine the individual
remuneration with reference to factors such as performance,
qualification, responsibilities of each individual, market conditions,
etc. Remuneration packages are normally reviewed on a regular
basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits including
provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage, annual
leave and options which may be granted under the share option
scheme were adopted by the Company on 18 February 2020. The
total staff costs (excluding Directors’ remuneration) incurred by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 was approximately
RMB49.5 million (2021: approximately RMB89.0 million).

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2022

BAREIE

R2022F 128318 » ANEE W &EE FT 418 14
KB 3R R VB B B ) KB AN ETE (2021
FECMARBI2AAET) °

KREE
A S 7820224812 A 31 BB EA KA
& & (202148 : f8) °

EEREFRBEARE
A BN EE20229 12431 B I F EHES
BEARE (20214 : f8) -

EXAREREXNEE ZARTE

RABERH AEEBRKFALBEARE
RERNEEZAE -

EEIKH

M2022F12A31H - LERAR K HIKFH
B M ERENRAEAARBKI2ZICEE T
(20214F - AR#E196.7HETT) + ARME118.6
BEIT(20214F « ARME1472E5 B TT) UMW
MEBERBITER R EMEREL KR
MARKI94EEIT (2021F12A318 : AR
k52 2B &7T) IRTTIE R E R FRITIES
BITERREMER  FRARENZEHE
R o

BE K &M B R

R2022F 124318 » REBEHF 25682 HE
B8 (20214F : 483%) - AEEEHEANER
BELRER U2EEANEE EE &
T MRERZETMEAFTH - HEFERT
SEHRT - BXAHEN EMBTRAE
BABRSHK BERR FREREAAR
MR20204F2 A 18 AN K BE R A 5T 81 AJ g2 5% i
RIBE AR #E - B 2= 2022F 12 A31H L FE - &
SEEEMBEIRA(TREESHH O
BAREAIOSHE T (20214 : ©9 AR #89.0
BEL) -



FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had
a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions were conducted in the PRC in RMB. Moreover, the
Group’s assets and liabilities are principally denominated in RMB. As
such, the Directors believe that the Group's risk in foreign exchange
is insignificant.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATED COMPANIES AND
JOINT VENTURES

There were no significant investments held, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associated companies and joint ventures
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was declared for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021.

Management Discussion and Analysis
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREEABERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xun Minghong (“Mr. Xun MH”), aged 53, was appointed as a
Director of our Company on 5 February 2019 and was redesignated
as the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
on 23 August 2019. Mr. Xun MH is primarily responsible for
supervising our overall management and planning our business
strategies.

Mr. Xun MH has over 26 years of experience in the PRC
construction industry. He accrued years of industry experience
during his employment at Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (%
HERIORRMD BIRAT]), a company whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 914) and is a
prominent cement producer and supplier in the PRC. Mr. Xun MH
had held various positions at Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited
during his tenure of employment from July 1993 to December 2002
and his duties covered sales, marketing and management in
different working locations including Fujian Province.

Subsequently, Mr. Xun MH co-established and operated certain
construction-related businesses in the PRC. By virtue of his
diversified knowledge and experience in the construction industry,
Mr. Xun MH also accumulated a variety of business connection with
a network of reputable construction enterprises and contractors in
Fujian. Equipped with such industry knowledge, experience and
strong business networks, Mr. Xun MH founded Jianzhong
Construction Technology on 5 December 2012 and engaged in the
leasing of construction machinery, equipment and tools in Fujian.
Jianzhong Construction Technology had since then diversified its
business to include the provision of a wide spectrum of construction
works as its core business.

Mr. Xun MH obtained the graduation certificate of specialised studies
in law (CE&EZEZ) from Anhui Province Higher Education Self-study
Examination Committee (ZHE ®EHEBEEHEZE ) and Anhui
University (Z#KE2) in the PRC in June 1993.

Mr. Xun MH obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (BZRTEMKZFZE) from the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (2 AR ZLFE A EZ) in April 1994, specialising in the area
of logistics economics (3 & 4% 7% 2 %),
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. He Wenlin, aged 53, has been the general manager and a
director of Jianzhong Construction Technology since November 2014
and since June 2016, respectively. He was appointed as a Director of
our Company upon its incorporation on 5 February 2019 and was
redesignated as an Executive Director on 23 August 2019. Mr. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing our overall operation and
business and technical development.

Mr. He has over 25 years of experience in the construction industry.
Mr. He had held various positions at CSCEC Strait Construction and
Development Co. Ltd. (@& RERZERBRRAF]) (previously known
as China Construction Seventh Engineering Division Third
Construction Co., Ltd (FE2+BE=FEAFRAF]), with his last
position as a department manager.

Mr. He graduated from Shenyang Institute of Construction and
Engineering (&[5 25 T2 2F) (currently known as Shenyang
Jianzhu University (FEE5ZZKE)), in the PRC in July 1994 and
specialised his studies in mechanical design and production (1 # %
FTERELEE ).

Mr. He obtained a qualification certificate as senior engineer (=4 T
A& W FEE) from China Construction Seventh Engineering
Department (FREE £ E+ T /F) in December 2005.

Ms. Zheng Ping, aged 59, was a director of Jianzhong Construction
Technology from December 2012 to October 2015 and subsequently
served as the deputy general manager and director of Jianzhong
Construction Technology since November 2015 and since June 2016,
respectively. She was appointed as a Director of our Company upon
its incorporation on 5 February 2019 and was redesignated as an
Executive Director on 23 August 2019. Ms. Zheng is primarily
responsible for overseeing our overall operation and fixed asset and
material management.

Ms. Zheng has over 26 years of experience in the construction
industry. From February 1993 to March 2008, Ms. Zheng worked as
an assistant general manager of Fujian Province lJianfu Bulk Cement
Co., Ltd. (fFBEE BEME/KEBRAR), a then subsidiary of Fujian
Cement Inc. ({2 @/KJel&m B MR A F]), a company whose shares are
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange (SSE Stock Code: 600802).
From April 2008 to November 2012, Ms. Zheng worked as a deputy
general manager of Ming Xin Construction Material Trading Company
Limited, a company principally engaged in the trading of cement.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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Ms. Zheng obtained the graduation certificate of specialised studies
in computer application (& # & A Z %) from Fujian Province
Higher and Secondary Professional Education Self-study Examination
Steering Committee (BRE RS HPEEXEHNEEEEHNIEZZLE
g), Xiamen University (ZPI X&) and Fuzhou University ({&/1 X £2)
in the PRC in December 1993.

Ms. Zheng obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (BEFfiT& K& E) from the Ministry of Personnel of the
PRC (FFEARKEMEAEE) in December 1996, specialising in
materials economics (#1& #%). She also obtained a qualification
certificate as an assistant engineer (Bh¥E T#2R0) specialising in
industrial and electrical automatisation (L% &R & #1k) from
Fuzhou City Personnel Bureau (f&/MM A EE) in May 1989.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Kaifa, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Yang has extensive
experience in securities management and the PRC capital markets.
From July 1996 to July 2017, Mr. Yang worked in Anhui Conch
Cement Company Limited (Z#U8BKEMMD AR A F]), a company
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 914) where he served, among others, as assistant to the
officer-in-charge (E{EBHIE), deputy officer-in-charge (/%) and
officer-in-charge (F{E) of the secretariat to the board of directors
(BEEEWEZE), secretary to the board of directors (EEFE€ME), as
well as deputy officer-in-charge of the regional management
committee in Jiangxi Region (IR EEZ E®EIE(E). Mr. Yang's
major duties in Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited covered
areas over company secretarial, securities affairs and general
management functions. Since July 2017 and July 2019, Mr. Yang has
served as a deputy general manager (&|##12) and general
manager (##32) of Anhui Conch Venture Investment Co. Ltd.
(“Anhui Conch Venture Investment”’), being one of the Pre-IPO
Investors.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor degree of arts (X E&+4) studies
specialised in foreign linguistics in English (4Ms8 R ZEFE) from Anhui
University (Z#A£) in the PRC in July 1996.

Mr. Yang obtained the Qualification Certificate of Specialty and
Technology (FE R T EKEZE) as a senior economist (1= A& &7 AM)
from Anhui Province Human Resources Bureau (Z#& AZEEE) in
May 2009.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wang Wei, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company with effect from 30 March 2021 and is responsible
for providing strategic advice to the business and operation of the
Group.

Mr. Wang completed his studies from Anhui Province Tongling
College of Finance and Economics (& #%& $HBE B & E R ER)
(currently known as Tongling University ($fF%&Bz)), in the PRC in
August 1986 and has over 20 years of experience in the PRC
construction industry. Mr. Wang joined Anhui Conch Cement
Company Limited (ZZUBBIKREARGK AR 2AA), a company which
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 914) in July 1992 and held several positions such as the
deputy general manager (2]#4%12) and general manager (##3%) of
its subsidiaries. Since February 2018 and July 2019, Mr. Wang has
served as an assistant to general manager (A24F3I2EHIE) and a
deputy general manager (&|424%3%), respectively, of Anhui Conch
Venture Investment Co. Ltd. (RBUBBRAIZKLEBSREMTAR), a
substantial shareholder of the Company (as defined in the Listing
Rules) as at the date of this report.

Mr. Xun Liangbao (“Mr. Xun LB”), aged 51, was appointed as a
Non-executive Director of our Company on 23 August 2019. Mr. Xun
LB completed his studies specialised in public management (2 #%&
1) from the Party School of Anhui Provincial Committee of the
Communist Party of China (f#Z#&EZER) in December 2007. He
served as a deputy officer-in-charge (g/= ) and officer-in-charge
(=E1E) of the service center at the Anhui Bengbu Municipal People’s
Government Office (ZHEHET ARBFHAZE) from March 1993 to
March 2018. He was employed as a vice general manager of the
Bengbu Branch of Jiangsu Wan Rong Construction Technology Co.,
Ltd. (I#H S IEREARAREHESQE) from March 2018 to
December 2018. He has since then been a director of Jianzhong
Construction Technology from December 2018 onwards.

He obtained the Certificate of Registered Constructor in Construction
Works (GEEE T2 EMZFE) from the Anhui Provincial
Department of Housing and Urban-Rural Development (Z#& FEM
R FREE) in May 2010.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Sze Irons, BBS, J.P, aged 61, was appointed to our Board on 18
February 2020 and does not hold any position with other members
of our Group. Mr. Sze was appointed the Justice of the Peace in
2011 and was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star by the Hong Kong
Government in 2015. He is currently the vice supervisor of the
committee of Human Resources and Environment of the National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(FEARBGGAHEEEZEZEGANERREZESA M), an
executive member of the Beijing Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (% BI A R EA #
AEHILRTEZEEEEELE), the chairman of HKCPPCC (Provincial)
Members Association Limited (BRE &HBHZE EBEEER) as well
as the Permanent Honorary President of the Chinese Manufacturers'
Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. Sze has been a member of the HKSAR Election Committee since
2006; and is currently a member of the HKSAR Labour Advisory
Board for 2019-2020.

Mr. Sze has been a director of Hang Tung Resources Holding
Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, since March 1984. The
company is principally engaged in property investment, import and
export trading, provision of management services and shares
investment. He is principally responsible for the day-to-day
management of its business operations, as well as the overall
strategic planning of the company.

Mr. Sze is currently an independent non-executive director of a
number of listed companies on the Stock Exchange, including, (i)
Best Mart 360 Holdings Limited (stock code: 2360), a company
principally engaged in the operation of a leisure food retailer chain,
from December 2018; (ii) ST International Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 8521), a provider of functional knitted fabrics, from April
2018; (iii) Chevalier International Holdings Limited (stock code: 25), a
company principally engaged in the construction and property-
related businesses, from November 2016, (iv) Continental Holdings
Limited (stock code: 513), a company principally engaged in the
jewellery industry, from October 2008; (v) Redco Healthy Living
Company Limited (stock code: 2370), a company principally engaged
in the provision of property management services in the PRC, from
March 2022; and (vi) Forward Fashion (International) Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 2528), a company principally engaged
in the retail of fashion apparel in the PRC, from 1 July 2022.

Mr. Sze was appointed as a non-executive director of two
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including, (i) China Weaving
Materials Holdings Limited (stock code: 3778), a company principally
engaged in the manufacturing of yarn products, from May 2011 to
June 2019; and (ii) Bel Global Resources Holdings Limited (stock
code: 761) since February 2017. The trading in the shares of Bel
Global Resources Holdings Limited had been suspended since 4 July
2011 and the listing of the shares was cancelled by the Stock
Exchange with effect from 24 August 2018.

Mr. Sze received his degree of bachelor of science from the
University of Wisconsin — La Crosse in the USA in May 1985.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong Kun Kau, aged 62, was appointed to our Board on 18
February 2020 and does not hold any position with other members
of our Group. He has over 40 years of experience in investment
banking and corporate finance, and is the founder and has been the
chief executive officer of Bull Capital Partners Ltd.,, a fund
management company specialising in direct investments in the
greater China region, since June 2008. Mr. Wong also held several
senior management positions with reputable financial institutions
including BNP Paribas Capital (Asia Pacific) Limited from August 1992
to November 2007, where he left as the head of investment
banking-Asia. He has been an independent non-executive director of
REF Holdings Limited (stock code: 1631), a company principally
engaged in financial printing services, since August 2015 and an
independent non-executive director of Huaxin Cement Co., Ltd.
(stock code: SH600801 and HK06655), a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange and the Main board of the Stock
Exchange, since 28 April 2021.

Mr. Wong was an independent non-executive director of a number of
listed companies on the Stock Exchange, including but not limited to,
() West China Cement Limited (stock code: 2233), a company
principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of cement and
cement products, from July 2010 to May 2019, (ii) Sansheng Holdings
(Group) Company Limited (stock code: 2183), a company principally
engaged in property development and property investment, from
August 2013 to May 2017; and (iii) China Shengmu Organic Milk
Limited (stock code: 1432), a company principally engaged in dairy
farming business and liquid milk business from June 2014 to June
2017. Mr. Wong had also been an independent non-executive
director since May 2012, and the chairman of the audit committee of
Anhui Conch Cement Company Limited (stock code: 914) since May
2013, until his retirement as an independent non-executive director
in June 2016.

Mr. Wong received his bachelor’'s degree in social science from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1982.

Mr. Zhu Diwu, aged 48, was appointed to our Board on 18 February
2020 and does not hold any position with other members of our
Group. Since May 2017, he has been the co-founder, chairman and
chief executive officer of Shanghai Aihui Health Technology Co., Ltd.
(EBEERBEREARAT), a company principally engaged in the
provision of information technology services to hospitals in the PRC
since May 2017. He has also been a director of Inventio Capital
Management (HK) Limited, a company principally engaged in asset
management. Mr. Zhu has been mainly responsible for supervisory
the overall management in the above two companies.

Mr. Zhu was employed at Deutsche Bank Group from July 2005 to
November 2010, where he last served as a director, equities
research analyst in the global markets division of the company.
Subsequently, Mr. Zhu was employed by Beijing Gao Hua Securities
Company Limited from November 2010 to May 2017 and served as a
managing director in the global investment research division of the
company.

Mr. Zhu completed the study and passed the examinations of the
international MBA program co-developed by Fudan University and
Massachusetts Institute of Technology in June 2003.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shao Yonghui, aged 56, is our chief engineer of our quality and
safety department. He has been the chief engineer and general
manager of the quality and safety department (E2% &%) of
Jianzhong Construction Technology since October 2017. He is
primarily responsible for the (i) liaison with governmental
administrative units and departments in relation to construction
works; and (i) the quality and safety management of our Group.

Mr. Shao has over 30 years of experience within the PRC
construction industry, specializing in areas such as construction
works technology, quality and safety management and construction
project management. He was employed at the Fujian Economic and
Technological Development Zone Construction Engineering Quality
Supervision Branch (1@ /1 4% 2 fig i 2 = 2 58 T2 E S BB uh) from
September 1989 to October 2012, and was designated as (i) a civil
engineering and municipal works supervisor (fiEMHEE 8); (i)
technical officer-in-charge (##i& & A); and (i) head of branch
during his period of employment. He was then employed as an
engineering officer-in-charge at Lanzhou High-Tech Development
Company Limited (BN & ¥ FEEZ AR 2 F]) from November 2012
to June 2017.

Mr. Shao completed his studies specialised in industrial and civil
construction (T %R 2E) at Open University of Fujian ({82 E &
BHRAE) the PRC in July 1989. He also completed an online
learning course of Sichuan University (P9Il A2, the PRC in June
2005, specialising his study in civil engineering management (/KT
B(ER)).

Mr. Shao obtained a qualification certificate as a senior engineer for
construction technology and management (i T i1 £ % 18 = 4 T 72
B#E ) from Fujian Province Human Resources and Social Security
Bureau (f8 &% A &R ERER) in May 2007.

Mr. Ma Chun Kei, aged 44, is our chief financial officer of Jianzhong
Construction Technology, the authorised representative and the
secretary of the Company.

Mr. Ma joined the Group in August 2019 and is primarily responsible
for overall financial management and company secretarial matters.
Mr. Ma has over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing and
financial management. Prior to joining the Group, he worked in an
international accounting firm and a company listed on the main
board of the Stock Exchange.
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Profile of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ma is a CFA® charterholder. He obtained a degree of bachelor of
arts in accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 2002. Mr. Ma completed the examinations of Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and became an affiliate member
in August 2003. He was admitted as a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants on 28 February 2007; and has been
registered as a certified public accountant by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since January 2008. In
addition, Mr. Ma obtained the qualification certificate of fund
practitioner issued by the Asset Management Association of China.

Mr. Ma was a member of the Committee of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference (Zengcheng District of Guangzhou,
the PRC) (FBIARBUSHE & EMTIEMIEZ & g) during 2016 to
2021.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

AR
ERER/RE

The Board hereby presents to the shareholders the corporate
governance report of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance, and strives to maintain transparent and responsible
management practices that will create long term value for the
interests of shareholders. The Board will continuously review and
improve the Group’'s corporate governance practices, and
maintaining a high standard of business ethics across the
organisation.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (“Corporate Governance Code”) in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange, except for the deviation as
mention below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive officer should be
separate and should not be performed by the same individual. Mr.
Xun MH currently holds both positions. Mr. Xun MH is the founder of
the Group. He has diversified knowledge and experience in the
construction industry as well as a variety of business connection
with a network of reputable construction enterprises and contractors
in Fujian. The Board believes that vesting the roles of both Chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer in the same person will
provide strong and consistent leadership to the Company and allow
the Company to be more effective and efficient in developing long
term business strategies and execution of business plans that are in
the best interests of the Company.

In addition, as all major decisions are made in consultation with
members of the Board and relevant Board committees, and there
are three independent non-executive Directors offering independent
perspectives, the Board is of the view that there are adequate
safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the
Board.

The Board will continue to regularly review and monitor its corporate
governance practices to ensure compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code, and maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTION
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct
governing securities transactions by the Directors. Upon enquiry by
the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they have complied
with the required dealing standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
Mr. Sze Irons has been an independent non-executive director of:

— Redco Healthy Living Company Limited (stock code: 2370), a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange,
since 14 March 2022; and

—  Forward Fashion (International) Holdings Company Limited
(stock code: 2528), a company listed on the main board of the
Stock Exchange, since 1 July 2022.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other change in information on
the Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group’s overall strategies, the setting of management targets and
supervision of management performance. Some functions including
the monitoring and approval of material transactions, matters
involving a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder or
Director of the Company, the approval of interim and annual results,
declaration of interim dividends and proposal of final dividends and
other disclosures to the public or regulators are reserved by the
Board for consideration and approval. Matters not specifically
reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily management and
operation of the Company are delegated to the executive Directors
and the management of the Company.

Corporate Governance Report
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Composition

The Board of Directors consists of three Executive Directors, three
Non-executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors. A list of Directors and their respective biographies are set
out in the section "Profile of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report. There is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationship) among
members of the Board.

In compliance with the requirements set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules, the Board consists of three Independent Non-executive
Directors, one of them, namely Mr. Wong Kun Kau, possesses of
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise. During the year ended 31
December 2022, the number of Independent Non-executive Directors
represents at least one-third of the Board which is in compliance
with Rule 3.10A. As such, the Company believes that there is a
sufficient independence element in the Board to safeguard the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the articles of association of the
company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire from
office by rotation at each annual general meeting and every Director
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every 3
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election.

Non-executive Directors

The Company has signed a letter of appointment with each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors. Each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has made an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

Mr. Wang Wei was appointed as a non-executive Director for an
initial period of three years commencing from 30 March 2021. The
commencement date of letter of appointment of each of the other
two non-executive Directors is 18 February 2020, for an initial term
of three years.

The Company has established following mechanisms to ensure

independent views and input are available to the Board and these
mechanisms will be reviewed annually.
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Number of Independent Non-executive Directors and their

contribution

Three out of nine Directors are Independent Non-executive
Directors, which fulfils the requirement of the Listing
Rules that at least one-third of the Board are
independent non-executive directors.

The composition of the Board should provide a sufficient
balance of skill, experience and diversity of perspectives
in leading the Company to achieve its goal.

Executive Director will meet with the Independent Non-
executive Directors at least annually.

The Chairman should at least annually hold meetings with
the Independent Non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which
the Board has determined to be material, the matter
should be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. Independent Non-executive
Directors who, and whose close associates, have no
material interest in the transaction should be present at
that Board meeting.

B.  Appointment and Independence of Non-executive Directors

Nomination Committee will assess the independence of a
candidate who is nominated to be a new Independent
Non-executive Director before appointment and the
continued independence of the current long-serving
Independent Non-executive Director, if any, on an annual
basis. All Independent Non-executive Directors are
required to submit a written confirmation to the
Company annually to confirm the independence of each
of them and their immediate family members, and their
compliance with the requirements as set out in the Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

A Director (including Independent Non-executive Director)
who has material interest in any contract, transaction or
arrangement shall abstain from voting and not be
counted in the quorum on any Board resolution
approving the same.

No equity-based remuneration with performance-related
elements will be granted to Independent Non-executive
Directors.

A.

B.
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C.  Channels where independent views are available

All Directors are entitled to retain independent professional
advisors as and when it is required and at the Company’'s
expense in appropriate circumstances.

D. Board meetings where independent views are expressed

i. The Board should meet regularly and Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. At least 14 days’ notice
of a regular Board meeting is given to all Directors to
provide them with an opportunity to attend and all
Directors are given an opportunity to include matters in
the agenda for a regular meeting. For all other Board
meetings, reasonable notice should be given.

ii. Board papers are usually dispatched to the directors at
least three days before the meeting to ensure that
Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and
be adequately prepared for the meeting.

iii.  Directors unable to attend a meeting are advised of the
matters to be discussed and are given an opportunity to
make their views known to the Chairman prior to the
meeting.

iv.  All Directors are encouraged to express their views in an
open and candid manner during the Board/Board
committees meetings.

V. Independent Non-executive Directors and other non-
executive Directors should make a positive contribution
to the development of the Company’s strategy and
policies through independent, constructive and informed
comments.
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Meetings and Attendance

The individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Committees’ meetings held during the year ended 31 December

2022 are set out in the table below: *:
Audit Nomination Remuneration Annual  Extraordinary
Board Committee Committee Committee General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EE® EHRZEY REZES 240 BR BRER
L g% 8% ZEged BEA® BRAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Xun Minghong® BRI EED 55  N/ATEA 11 11 1711 NATEHR
Mr. He Wenlin XA 5/5  N/A TEF 111 171 1711 NATER
Ms. Zheng Ping gzt 55  N/ATEA 11 11 1711 NATEHR
Non-executive Directors FHTES
M. Yang Kaifa BREEE 55 N/A TER 1 171 1M NATER
Mr. Wang Wei Tk 55 N/A RER 1N 171 1M NATER
Mr. Xun Liangbao RARBEAE 55 N/A TER 111 171 171 N/ATiER
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Sze Irons® B L ES 5/5 2/2 m”m 7 m”m N/A T
Mr. Wong Kun Kau® BERLAC 5/5 2/2 1M 171 1N NATER
Mr. Zhu Diwu® KR k4 5/5 2/2 m”m (Al m”m N/A T
. Chairman of the Board g EEGXFE
2 Chairman of the Audit Committee 2 EZEZEEXR
3 Chairman of the Nomination Committee 3 RELZEQXRE
4 Chairman of the Remuneration Committee . FMEEEER

In respect of code provision A.2.7 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Chairman of the Board should at least annually hold
meetings with the non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the presence of the Executive
Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Independent
Non-executive Directors had meeting with the Chairman of the
Board without the presence of other executive Directors. In addition,
the Independent Non-executive Directors could also communicate
directly at any time through other means (such as telephone or
email) to give their opinions and share their views on the Company’s
affairs.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, all Directors shall participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skill to ensure that they obtain the updated and relevant
information regarding to the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements. In December 2022, each of the Directors
have attended the training courses organised by the legal adviser of
the Company. The content of such training related to the duties of
directors and on-going obligations of listed companies.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board in order to enhance
the quality of its performance. The board diversity policy provides
that the Company should endeavour to ensure that our Board
members have the appropriate balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives that are required to support the execution
of its business strategy.

Pursuant to the board diversity policy, we seek to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, gender,
age, cultural and education background, ethnicity and length of
service. The existing members of the Board were appointed after
taking into account the aforesaid factors.

The effective implementation of the board diversity policy requires
that our Shareholders are able to judge for themselves whether the
Board as constituted is a reflection of diversity, or a gradual move to
increased diversity, on a scale and at a speed which they support.
To this end, our Shareholders will be provided with detailed
information of each candidate for appointment or re-election to the
Board through announcements and circulars published prior to
general meetings of the Company.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company had a total of
nine Directors, covering different gender and age groups. In addition
to industry knowledges, members of the Board also have
professional experience in capital market, finance and corporate
governance.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy
from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

As at 31 December 2022, the gender ratio of the Group’s workforce
was approximately 68% male to 32% female due to construction
industry traditionally has less female participants. The Company’'s
hiring is merit-based and non-discriminatory. The Board is satisfied
that the Company has achieved gender diversity in its workforce.
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BOARD COMMITTEES
Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee on 18 February
2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are
not limited to, (i) assisting our Board by providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal
control and risk management systems of our Group; (ii) overseeing
the audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities as
assigned by our Board; (i) developing and reviewing our policies and
practices on corporate governance,; (iv) making recommendations to
our Board; and (v) ensuring that good corporate governance
practices and procedures are established. The Audit Committee
consists of three members, Mr. Wong Kun Kau, Mr. Zhu Diwu and
Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP. Mr. Wong Kun Kau is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held two committee meetings during the year
ended 31 December 2022 with external auditor without the
presence of the executive Directors to discuss the results and
findings in connection to the interim review and annual audit of the
Ccompany’s consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee on 18
February 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are
to make recommendations to our Board on the overall remuneration
policy and structure relating to all Directors and senior management
of our Group, review performance based remuneration and ensure
none of our Directors determine their own remuneration. In order to
determine the level of remuneration and fees paid to members of
the Board, market rates and factors such as each director’s
workload, performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account. The Remuneration
Committee consists of four members, namely Mr. Zhu Diwu, Mr,
Wwong Kun Kau, Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP and Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Zhu
Diwu is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

The Renumeration Committee held one committee meeting during
the year ended 31 December 2022 to discuss and determine the
level of remuneration and fees paid to members of the Board.
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Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on 18
February 2020 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to
make recommendations to our Board on the appointment of
Directors and the management of our Board succession, by
considering the factors below, among others:

a) mix of Board members that promotes diversity of background
and experience on the Board, taking into account the business
model of the Company and any specific needs;

b) educational background and competency;
C) age of potential/existing Director,
d) independence of potential/existing Board members;

e) business, technical, or specialised skills and experience of
potential/existing Board members;

f) ability, time, commitment and willingness of a new member to
serve and an existing member to continue service; and

2) specific value a potential/existing Board member can add to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Sze Irons B.B.S., JP, Mr. Wong Kun Kau, Mr. Zhu Diwu and Mr. Xun
MH. Mr. Sze Irons B.B.S., JP is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee. The Nomination Committee shall report back to the
Board and keep the Board fully informed of its decisions and
recommendations, unless prohibited by applicable laws and
regulations.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2022 to propose re-election of retiring
Directors in the annual general meeting and appointment of an Non-
executive Director.
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Risk Management Review Committee

The Company has established a risk management review committee
in August 2019 with written terms of reference. The members of the
risk management review committee are Mr. Xun MH., Mr. Wong Kun
Kau, Mr. Xun LB and Mr. Ma Chun Kei. Mr. Xun MH is the chairman
of the risk management review committee.

Its major functions include, (a) ensuring our Group's internal control
function in respect of budgeting to be adequately resourced; (b)
reviewing and monitoring the cash budget prepared by our Group’s
management; (c) ensuring the client acceptance procedures are
appropriately adopted to reduce potential credit risk; (d) reviewing
the ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables, and ensuring
appropriate procedures are adopted to collect the overdue
receivables; (e) ensuring we have adequate financial resources to
fulfill the capital requirement of any tender with acceptable profit
margin to us; and (f) monitoring the related party transactions to
ensure these transactions to be conducted on normal commercial
terms.

To carry out these functions, the risk management review committee
held four committee meetings during the year ended 31 December
2022.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration for the audit and non-audit services provided by
the auditors to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2022
was approximately as follows:
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company may declare dividends in the future after taking into
account the results of operations, earnings, capital requirements,
general financial condition, and other factors as our Directors may
deem relevant at such time. The declaration of dividends is subject
to the discretion of our Directors and the approval of our
Shareholders (except for interim dividends) as may be necessary.
Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends will
be subject to the applicable requirements of the Articles and the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2022, and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Independent Auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the section
headed "Independent Auditor's Report”.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Ma Chun Kei,
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training as
required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. His biography is set
out in the section “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure,
provide all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their
rights in an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage
actively with the Company. Under the Articles, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal procedures of the
Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy, among others,
the following rights:

(i) Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of the
shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and
circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be sent
to the shareholders no less than 21 days before the meeting.
At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantial issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

(ii) Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend shareholders’
meetings and make proposals by either directly raising
guestions on both operational and governance matters to the
Board and committees members at the general meetings or
providing written notice of such proposals for the attention of
the Company Secretary at the registered office of the
Company in Hong Kong, currently situated at 4/F, Wah Yuen
Building, 149 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong or via email to
jlanzhong_cons@fjjzkj.com.
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(iii) Convening extraordinary general meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
may also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the registered office of the
Company in Hong Kong, currently situated at 4/F, Wah Yuen
Building, 149 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for the
purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within
twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors fail to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

(iv) Procedures for proposing a person for election as
a Director

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the Articles, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting unless a notice
in writing of the intention to propose that person for election
as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
Company’s headquarters and principal place of business at
2002, lJinlan Building, No. 33 Zhaogiang Road, Mawei District,
Fuzhou City, Fujian Province, China or at its Hong Kong share
registrar and transfer office at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre,
16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the
notices required under Article 113 will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting and the
minimum length of the period during which such notices to the
Company may be given will be at least seven days.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels with
investors to update them with the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of interim and annual
reports, the publish and posting of notices, announcements and
circulars on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s
website in order to maintain a high level of transparency.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Save for the adoption of the amended and restated Memorandum
and Articles of Association for the purpose of and upon the Listing,
there was no changes in the Company’'s memorandum of
association and the Articles.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board reviews the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group for each financial year annually to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency and is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control and risk management systems of the
Group. The Directors believe that effectiveness of the internal control
and risk management systems can avoid or reduce risks which can
cause loss or reputational damage to the Group. Such systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

An internal audit function is set up to identify, monitor and manage
the key risks area associated with the business activities in relation
to the financial and operational matters/practices of the Group and
to provide its findings and any recommendations for improvement to
the Audit Committee. The internal control and risk management
systems include a defined management structure with segregation of
duties and a cash management system such as monthly
reconciliation of bank accounts. During the year 2022, we engaged
an independent internal control consultant (“Internal Control
Consultant”) to evaluate the internal control and risk management
systems. Based on the suggestions made by our Internal Control
Consultant, we take remedial measures to the deficiencies and
shortcomings of our internal control and risk management systems.
After such review, the Board considered that the Company’s
enhanced internal control and risk management systems was
adequate and effective.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of insider information, the Group has a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information in the staff
handbook.

In December 2022, the Company arranged a training session
provided by our Hong Kong legal adviser to all Directors as
continuing professional trainings. Such training covered the topic of
the disclosure of inside information.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEWmE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Group are the provision of construction
service, provision of equipment operation service, and provision of
sewage treatment service in mainland China. Details of the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant to
Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) is set out in the section of “Management Discussion and
Analysis” of this annual report.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group
are shown in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
December 2022 using key financial performance indicators is set out
in the Five-Year Financial Summary on page 164 of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A number of factors may affect the results and business operations
of the Group, major risks are summarized below:

i)  Non-recurrent nature of the projects

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of
construction works service. The construction services are
offered on a project-by-project basis with no long-term
commitment with any of the customers in this segment. Upon
the completion of the ongoing construction works projects, the
Group may not be engaged by the customer in subsequent
construction works projects. As such, the revenue attributable
to the construction works service is not recurring in nature.

In the event that the Group are unable to attract new
customers or secure new construction works projects from
existing customers, the Group's revenue or profit may
decrease significantly and this would adversely affecting the
business, financial condition or results of operations of the
Group.
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ii)

iii)

iv)

V)

Fluctuation in cost of materials

Since the contract value of each of the construction projects
are generally pre-determined when a project is awarded, any
substantial increase in the material cost between the time of
submission of a tender or quotation and the time when the
relevant materials are purchased will substantially increase the
material cost and may materially and adversely affect the
profitability, results of operations and financial condition of the
Group.

Availability and performance of labour
subcontractors

The Group has to engage a number of labour subcontractors
to provide the Group with a large number of construction
workers with different expertise and skill sets to carrying out
the construction works. In the event that the labour market
conditions result in shortage of labour or material increase in
labour costs, the Group may need to offer more competitive
labour subcontracting fees so as to attract and maintain a
reliable supply of construction workers. Such events could
impact the profitability and financial performance of the Group.

Delays and/or defaults of progress payments by the
customers

The Group generally receive payment from customers in stages
based on the terms of the construction contracts. Significant
portions of the operating costs, setting-up expenses associated
with a project, including labour and material costs, at the initial
stage of a project are incurred before any progress payment
made by the customers. As a result, there may be periods
during which the Group may experience net cash outflows for
a particular project as well as on an overall basis. Therefore,
the Group are constantly subject to credit and liquidity risks,
which may materially and adversely affect the profitability,
result of operations and financial position of the Group.

Macroeconomics in the PRC

Any adverse change in the economic condition in the PRC may
directly or indirectly affect the demand for the services
provided by the Group, and the business operations and
financial condition may also be materially and adversely
affected as a result.

Should there be an economic downturn or credit crisis in the
PRC for any reason, the Group may not be able to borrow new
funds, which in turn could materially and adversely affect the
results of operations and financial condition of the Group.
Moreover, apart from the access to funds, an economic
downturn or credit crisis will also affect the liquidity of the
customers. As a result, the recoverability of the Group's
account receivables may be adversely affected.
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EXEHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company's
subsidiaries in mainland China while the Company itself is listed on
the Stock Exchange. Our establishment and operations accordingly
shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in mainland PRC and
Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group in all material aspects has
complied with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group. There
was no material breach or non-compliance with the applicable laws
and regulations by the Group during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 69.8% (2021:
approximately 74.8%) of the total revenue of the Group and the
largest customer of the Group accounted for approximately 47.5%
(2021: approximately 36.0%) of the total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately 74.6%
(2021: approximately 78.8%) of the total subcontracting cost of the
Group and the largest subcontractor of the Group accounted for
approximately 32.9% (2021: approximately 33.7%) of the total
subcontracting cost.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 82.0% (2021:
approximately 37.5%) of the total purchases of construction
materials of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 33.0% (2021: approximately 10.1%) of
the total purchases of construction materials.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates (as defined
under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) has any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers or suppliers or subcontractors.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group aims to maintain stable relationship with our customers
to explore potential business opportunities and is highly committed
to delivering quality services to our customers on time.
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Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Group maintains a list of approved subcontractors (based on
their previous experience, skills, present work load, price quotations
and historical work quality) and suppliers (based on their prices,
quality, past performance and capacity).

Employees

The Group recognised employees as valuable assets of the Group.
The Group intends to adopt the competitive remuneration, good
welfare benefits and continuous professional training to attract and
retain appropriate and suitable personnel to serve the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there was no material
dispute or argument between the Group and its customers,
subcontractors, suppliers and employees.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s result for the year ended 31 December 2022 and the
Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 73 to 76 of this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the financial year (2021: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 164 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting (the "AGM”) of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is scheduled to be held on Tuesday, 27
June 2023. A notice convening the AGM will be issued and
despatched to the shareholders according to the applicable law, the
Articles and the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the AGM to be
held on Tuesday, 27 June 2023, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 21 June 2023 to Tuesday,
27 June 2023, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
Shares will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’'s Hong Kong share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 17/F, Far East Finance
Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong for registration not later than
4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 June 2023.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

No charitable contribution was made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: approximately RMB3,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 10 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the authorised share capital and issued
share capital during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out
in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the share option scheme on 18 February
2020 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships with, such
eligible persons who are significant to and/or whose contributions
are or will be beneficial to the performance, growth or success of
the Group. Subject to the earlier termination of the Share Option
Scheme in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years commencing
on 18 March 2020.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any
proposed, full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any Directors or proposed
Director (including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any
direct or indirect shareholder of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries; and any consultants, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member of our
Group, a person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of our Group, or a
close associate of any of the foregoing persons. The maximum
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 62,500,000
shares, representing 10% of the total number of issued shares of the
Ccompany as at the date of this annual report.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share Option
Scheme such that the total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to
that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest
grant exceeds 1% of the Company’s issued share capital from time
to time.
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An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been
accepted when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of the
option duly signed by the grantee together with a remittance in
favour of our Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the
grant thereof is received by our Company within the period specified
in the letter containing the offer of the grant of the option. Once
such acceptance is made, the option shall be deemed to have been
granted and to have taken effect from the offer date.

The exercise price of the options is determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion and shall not be less than whichever is the
highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a share;

(b)  the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheets on the offer date; and

(c)  the average closing price of a share as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five Business
Days (as defined in the Listing Rules) immediately preceding
the offer date.

As at 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022 and the date of this annual
report, no option was granted nor exercised nor remained
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme since its adoption on 18
February 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note
26(a) to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries redeemed, purchased or sold any of the listed
securities of the Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares.
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EEEHRE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS EmiE

Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated EENAATIREBEENERS
Corporation

As at 31 December 2022, the interests or short positions of the 20226 12831H AR AIEEREEITHK
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, ABRARFISNEEMEEEZR(FERES

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its MEFEEHIEXVER) Z XM - HERD k&S

associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) FEHREEAR()BIEFE 5 KIS 56| E352(58 %
which were required (i) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be RRZIEMMLZ B MAZ R AR - X
recorded in the register referred to therein, or (i) pursuant to Model  (i)iR# - TR B 8+ FrEZ TR 2 R E

Code contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, to be notified to  MZ&
the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

HMEARRE NPTz s SORBIAT

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company RALAREBRNGTRE

Number of
ordinary shares Percentage of

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest held/interested  shareholding*
Fiis A RER

EEHE B, RmtE VEBEREE BRBE D
Mr. Xun MH Interest in a controlled corporation® 319,380,375 51.11%
B BAL R E REESEE O #ER

Mr. Xun LB Interest in a controlled corporation® 45,316,125 7.25%
BRBRE REESEE O #ER

Notes: Bisr

1. The Company is directly held as to 304,056,250 shares and 15,324,125 1.
shares by MHX Investment Limited (“MHX Investment BVI”) and lJingH
Investment Limited (“JingH Investment BVI"), respectively. MHX
Investment BVI is wholly-owned by Mr. Xun MH. JingH Investment BVI
is owned as to 36.99% by Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Xun MH is deemed to be
interested in the aggregate number of shares that are held by MHX
Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI under the SFO.

2. The Company is directly held as to 45,316,125 shares by Furi Investment 2.
Limited (“Furi Investment BVI"). Furi Investment BVI is owned as to
42.01% by Mr. Xun LB. Mr. Xun LB is deemed to be interested in the
number of Shares that are held by Furi Investment BVI under the SFO.

*

* The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as
at 31 December 2022.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register of the Company
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares in the
Company other than Director

As at 31 December 2022, so far as our Directors or chief executive
of our Company are aware, the following persons (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or a short
positions in shares or underlying shares of the Company, as
recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of Interest
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Number of
ordinary shares
held/interested

Percentage of
shareholding*

Fiis BAEREE

BREEHE KB B REmtE VEBERBE HRASL*
MHX Investment BVI Beneficial owner® 304,056,250 48.65%

Em#EEAO
Ms. Song Dongling Interest of spouse® 319,380,375 51.11%
RERE T [iRRE il
CV Construction Capital Limited Beneficial owner® 102,937,500 16.47%
BEIERERNBR QA Em#EEA?
Conch Venture Development Limited  Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
BREIEERAR AR REZEHER S EZR?
Yijiang International Limited Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
VIEBREERAE REZEHER S EZR?
Shanghai Yijiang Investment Limited Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
FECIREBRAF REZEHER S EZR?
Anhui Conch Venture Investment Interest in a controlled corporation® 102,937,500 16.47%
ZHRBBEIERE REZEGER R
Furi Investment BVI Beneficial owner® 45,316,125 7.25%
EIHI EBVI Em#EEAQ
Ms. Leng Yan Interest of spouse® 45,316,125 7.25%
R B B

BETFERRRARAR —B--F5H e
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Notes:

1. The Company is directly held as to 304,056,250 shares and 15,324,125
shares by MHX Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI, respectively.
MHX Investment BVI is wholly-owned by Mr. Xun MH. JingH Investment
BVI is owned as to 36.99% by Mr. Xun MH. Mr. Xun MH is deemed to
be interested in the same number of shares that are held by MHX
Investment BVI and JingH Investment BVI under the SFO. Ms. Song
Dongling is the spouse of Mr. Xun MH and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares in which Mr. Xun MH is
interested under the SFO.

2. The Company is directly held as to 102,937,500 shares by CV
Construction Capital Limited (“CV Construction BVI"). CV Construction
BVI is wholly-owned by Conch Venture Development Limited (“Conch
Venture Development”). Conch Venture Development is wholly-owned
by Yijiang International Limited. Yijiang International Limited is wholly-
owned by Shanghai Yijiang Investment Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Anhui Conch Venture Investment. Accordingly, each
of Conch Venture Development, Yijiang International Limited, Shanghai
Yijiang Investment Limited and Anhui Conch Venture Investment is
deemed to be interested in the same number of shares that are held
by CV Construction BVI under the SFO.

3. The Company is directly held as to 45,316,125 shares by Furi Investment
BVI. Furi Investment BVI is owned as to 42.01% by Mr. Xun LB. Mr.
Xun LB is deemed to be interested in the number of shares that are
held by Furi Investment BVI under the SFO. Ms. Leng Yan is the
spouse of Mr. Xun LB and is therefore deemed to be interested in the
same number of shares in which Mr. Xun LB is interested under the
SFO.

* The percentage represents the number of shares of the Company
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as
at 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person, other
than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
headed “Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated
Corporation” above, had registered an interest or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the Share Option Scheme as set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” above, at no time during the year
under review was the Company or any of its holding companies or
subsidiary, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

During the year under review, other than the Share Option Scheme
as set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” above, the
Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands, amounted to approximately RMB176.4 million (31 December
2021: RMB163.6 million).

COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors confirm that none of the controlling shareholders of
the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the Directors and
their respective close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) is
interested in any business apart from the business operated by the
Group which competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly,
with the Group’s business at any time during the year ended 31
December 2022.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Report of the Directors
EXEHRE

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xun Minghong (Chairman)
Mr. He Wenlin
Ms. Zheng Ping

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Kaifa

Mr. Wang Wei

Mr. Xun Liangbao

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Sze Irons, B.B.S., J.P.
Mr. Wong Kun Kau
Mr. Zhu Diwu

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considered
all of its Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the guidelines as set out under the Listing Rules.

TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions
and Related Party Transactions” in this annual report, there was no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company, its holding
Ccompany, or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a
Director of the Company or his connected entities had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 December 2022, nor
was there any transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) or any of its subsidiaries for the year.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in notes 7 and 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out in the section of “Profile of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group's eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong. No forfeited contribution was used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions.

Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS POLICIES

Details of the Group’s emolument policies are set out in the
paragraph headed “Employees and remuneration policies” in the
section of “Management Discussion and Analysis”.

The Directors’ fees and other emoluments are determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Company as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company,
which were not a contract of service with any Director or any
person engaged in the full-time employment of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.
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Report of the Directors

EXEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by the
Group in its normal course of business are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, applicable laws and regulations, every
Director shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them may incur
or sustain in the execution of their duties in their offices. Such
permitted indemnity provision has been in force throughout the year
under review. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of
the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The Group is committed to support environmental protection to
ensure business development and sustainability. The Group
implements green office practices to reduce the consumption of
energy and natural resources. These practices include the use of
energy-saving lightings and recycled papers, reduce energy
consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers and electrical
appliances and the use of environmentally friendly products
whenever possible.

The environmental, social and governance report is set out in the
section headed "Environmental, Social and Governance Report”.
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EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period of the
Group.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2022 have been audited by KPMG, who shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for
the re-appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Xun Minghong
Chairman

Fujian, 31 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RS ETE &S

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Jianzhong Construction Development Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jianzhong
Construction Development Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 73 to 163, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022 and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auwditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial staterents
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE

AR ETE R
FREBAFSFHERERMANEXAE  RR
HARHRA M BRRNBARASEENSH o
EUEREERMBABRESVBHRERNL
HAZRRETREN - RATSHELS
RERHERNER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these

matters.
Revenue recognition for construction contracts

Refer to notes 3(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(k)
and 1(s)(.

The Key Audit Matter
HREEITEE

The Group recorded revenue from the provision of
construction service, including foundation works,
formwork and scaffolding works, construction of sewage
treatment infrastructure and other construction works,
in mainland China totalling RMB313.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022.
HE2022F12A31BIEFE - EXEERTEAMMIE
MEERY  BREMETE  BREWFRIRE . 5K
RIBEMLMERIAMBETIR HERFEHEAR
#313.6BETT °

contract revenue is recognised progressively over time
using the output method, based on direct
measurements of the value of contract work
performed, which is mainly reflected by the progress
certificates issued by customers. The customer will
provide final account when the whole project is
completed and may have adjustments on the amount
recognised to date according to the actual surveys of
work performed at completion.
BRREZMATENIRENEZEETZE  KABN
FRERERERR  ZEBEEIERVERFPEENER
BHAL - ZEERE TKE  FPSREERKEKEE - 87
ERBTHKHEE TKNEGANIENERASEYEEZRR
FIiERR S RRIEH TR -

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance
indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of
recognition of revenue by management to meet specific
targets or expectations.

MR HERSAERES SR RARKGERE &
SENERERER — MERPRERREREINR
TE B 13 5 T8 B R 2 M s T s A T 9 [ B L Bt o

BESHOWHEER

B B B SR 3(6) R BT A 15 R AT 10k) K BTEE1(5)
() # & 5T BR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN ESNAEEZREE

Our audit procedures to assess revenue recognition for
construction contracts included the following:

PR EREES NN ERITETHNETIEFB2EN
&I :

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal controls
over the contract revenue recognition processes;

o oG AR TERIE T AT £ Z AR IR R ET
AT RIBIERCRL

o inspecting a sample of contracts with customers,
to identify key terms and conditions, and to
assess the Group’s revenue recognition criteria
with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;

J MEREREPIIVHEL - BRI EZEBRARE
% WRERTEALEAORETH ESENK

3 R AR A

o comparing the contract revenue recognised for
construction projects during the year, on a
sample basis, with progress certificates issued by
customers;

. HEGRFAREEIE R RGN EEEPHRE
B EEBETH L

o conducting site visits, on a sample basis, to
observe the progress of individual projects and
discussing with project managers or site
personnel about the physical status of the
respective project with reference to the agreed
timetable and the Group’s accounting records,

J HEETEMRE  UBRERBEEEE - U2
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Revenue recognition for construction contracts

Refer to notes 3(a) and 15 to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in notes 1(k)
and 1(s)().

The Key Audit Matter
REESEER

BESNRBEER

P& TR T 3(a) R 15 R B ez 100) K HTaE 1(s)
() &) 25T R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESNAEEZSE

o comparing the certified amounts in the final
accounts, for contracts completed during the
year, with the contract revenue recognised to
date, to assess whether adjustments in the final
accounts, if any, have been reflected in the
Group’s accounting records; and

J REABTHEL - SRR KRE PHRE S FHEE
ZHAITERNE QW REITE Y - ARl & &R
BERHRAE (WA RERME BE5EMETH
Fo R

o obtaining confirmations, on a sample basis, from
major customers of the Group to confirm
amounts certified for selected construction
projects during the year and, for unreturned
confirmations, performing alternative procedures
by comparing details with contracts, and other
underlying project related documentation.

J Hm BEREFZEXFPERERE  UERFEA
BTREEHENERSRE  UHARATERENTH
2y - BIEELKRFIBEE A KA MIE#EIE
B ABRE 1 -
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Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
and other receivables and contract assets

Refer to notes 16 and 27(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1()i).

The Key Audit Matter
HEESEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's gross trade
receivables and other receivables and contract assets
amounted to RMB1,288.2 million, against which an
allowance of RMB372.0 million for expected credit
losses (ECLs) was recorded. The Group’s trade
receivables and other receivables and contract assets
mainly arose from provision of construction service.
M2022F 123318+ EBESEE 5 EWKFIE R H M EK
HEUREHNEERER/RARK1288 288 ' E5TiR
WIESMEERLAEESEARARKINZOBEETL BES
EHE 5 ERFIBREMEBGRIBAREGENEEEEZ R
iRt EER -

The Group measures the loss allowance at an amount
equal to lifetime ECL based on estimated loss rates for
each category of receivables grouped according to the
shared credit risk characteristics. The estimated loss
rates take into account the ageing of trade receivable
balances, the repayment history of the Group's
customers, current market conditions, customer-specific
conditions, and forward-looking information. Such
assessment involves significant management judgement
and estimation.

BB ERNBOUEE R A S E R IER TE HE
KL RREENERFTEHNEREEBRINSE
EEXERB - BHBRAXEREZRERKKNIBLARRE
B BEERFPHMEEEL ZEAmGER BFPE
EESRAATIE EE R o Rt b RERNEEE 2 B
&t e

We identified the ECL for trade receivables and other
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter
because determining the level of the loss allowance
requires the exercise of significant management
judgement which is inherently subjective.
HRBEREBNBESINEANEEEHE BEFE
E B THEEM - B E F e GRIE & H i Y 5RIE A
RERNEENTEHRERBAEN ABRETEIE -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMEFNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL allowance for
trade receivables and other receivables and contract
assets included the following:

HPFHEE S EBGRIA R B EUGRIBEA R E W EETE
EEBRREENETEFBEENUATEIE

o obtaining an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls relating to
credit control, debt collection and credit loss
allowance calculation;

J TREEERBRZES - EHKRE REEBRERT
HrEEAERAEIES - WA EHRE - T RE
YERCAK

o evaluating the Group's policy for estimating the
credit loss allowance with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting

standards;
o 2BV EANEX - FE BEBEEEE
BREEN ST BUER

o assessing whether items in the trade receivables
ageing report were categorised in the appropriate
ageing bracket by comparing individual items
therein with relevant underlying documentation,
on a sample basis;

J S & 5 FE R IA AR e 0 AT 5 R #Y B3 & 18 B £
MR SIS M ST RS - ST E R IEE R EH
HHENEE R RIRIESE

o obtaining an understanding of the key parameters
and assumptions of the expected credit loss
model adopted by the management, including the
basis of segmentation of the trade receivables,
and other receivables and contract assets based
on credit risk characteristics of customers and the
historical default data in management’s estimated
loss rates;

J TRERERMGEEERRAPTERNBRSE
kBH PREEEENEFEERRBEHEES
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Expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables
and other receivables and contract assets

Refer to notes 16 and 27(a) to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1()i).

The Key Audit Matter
REESEER

B 5 P W IE R H R R A R
BRNEERMEERXAER

it & B A At 16 R 1 it 27(a) R AT 10)()F 49 &
nhB?ﬁ@"

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESNAEEZSE

o assessing the appropriateness of management’s
estimates of loss allowance by examining the
information used by management to derive such
estimates, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data and evaluating whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted
based on current market conditions, customer-
specific conditions and forward-looking
information; and

J BAREEEERAMNMELBRMGETNER - 2558
AR ENENERY  THELBEAEXERE
EIRBE TSR - BRPEEERRAEEER
ETRAR TEEEEURERE#GBTNES
5 &

o re-performing the calculation of the loss allowance
as at 31 December 2022 based on the Group's
credit loss allowance policy.

J AR BEEEEEBRREEBREEN
12 A31BHVIB R %M -

HR20225

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2022



Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment

Refer to notes 10() to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1()ii).

The Key Audit Matter
HEESEE

As at 31 December 2022, the Group held property,
plant and equipment with a carrying value of RMB420.9
million.

M2022612 4318 - BEERBEREEAAR4L20.9
BETHYE  WERZE -

Management considered that there were indicators of
impairment of property, plant and equipment as at 31
December 2022 due to weak sentiment of the real
estate sector in mainland China and the principal
businesses of the Group, including the provision of
construction service, leasing of construction machinery,
equipment and tools were adversely impacted.
HRFPEANMEMETENSR  ERERA - 12022
F12A318 - W% KBE KK f%fﬁ/mﬁﬁjéﬁ i &
SEFEXB (RERMEERT  BEEM  RERT
BEHE) I ZE -

Accordingly, management assessed the recoverable
amount of property, plant and equipment based on the
higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. The determination of value in use (“VIU") was
based on a discounted cash flows forecast prepared by
an external valuer and compared with the carrying
value. The preparation of discounted cash flows
forecast involves the exercise of significant
management judgement, in particular in determining
sales growth rates, gross profit margins and pre-tax
discount rate. Based on the impairment assessment,
impairment losses of RMB93.4 million were recognised
for the year.

EHit - BEEERBAVEREEXNAEERAEERARS
ERE)FEME WMERZENIRESEE - BEEEA
{ETE(FVIUJ)EﬁﬁAﬁl\iﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬂifﬁ%E’Jﬁﬁfﬁfﬁﬁ/méiﬁ
Al - WEAREE#ETHER - GRMBERSRETRA L R
ﬂﬁ%ﬁ”ﬂ%fé#ﬂ&ﬁ THEEETHEERE £
KR BRFATAE IR R o BIBRENE - FAE®ERRE
EEARKIBABET -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BAMEFNAEEZEE

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment of
property, plant and equipment included the following:
M EYE  BERRBERENSTHEFEFEATS
15 :

o evaluating the design and implementation of key
internal controls in relation to management’s
process and procedures for the identification of
indicators of potential impairment and the
impairment assessment;

J ATl B IR E 5 R B TR BB AR RORUE RS MR AR
K 2 Fr A8 A B A 8 P9 B 2 11l 9 B AT R B S

o assessing the appropriateness of management’s
identification of cash-generating unit with
reference to the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;

J 2ERTEHEANNRE  FTHEEEZANRSE
EBRIREE M

o performing a retrospective review by comparing
prior year cash flows forecast with the actual
results in the current year and making enquiries
of management as to the reasons for any
significant variations identified to assess whether
this is any indication of management bias;

J HBREFENReRERAERNFEENERERE
THER - ETEMRE - YMERERBEMERX
ZENRE UTHEBEAERBETEREEREW
"R

o obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports
prepared by the external valuers on which the
management’s assessment of the recoverable
amount was based,;

o IS B IR 8 5T PI U [B] & BB P K 48 A FR SN EB
HER ARG ERE

o assessing the external property valuers'
competence, capabilities and objectivity;
o LN EBEMEEE - sEh REER I 5
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Assessing impairment of property, plant and equipment

Refer to notes 10() to the consolidated financial
Statements and the accounting policies in note 1()(i).

The Key Audit Matter
REESEER

We identified the impairment assessment of property,
plant and equipment as a key audit matter because of
the significance of the carrying value of the assets to
the consolidated financial statements and because the
preparation of discounted cash flows forecast involves a
significant degree of judgement and could be subject to
management bias.

B ME - BERZERENGETABRESEIE -
EREENKRAESGEVEBRERNES A REEIRE
EREEANGFER P RERAE WA EERER
REFE o

M3 BERRBERERT G

BRIARE I TEERAT E 100) R T ZE 10000 F 49 2 51 B °

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANESNAEEZSE

o involving our internal valuation specialists to
assess the appropriateness of the methodology
adopted with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards and assessing
whether the pre-tax discount rate applied in the
discounted cash flows forecast was comparable
in the industry;

J EEAPHEZRD2EZRIT LR E TG
KARENEE M W EMRBE e RERAPE
RAeRTAIMIR R SR ETEAFA M

o evaluating the reasonableness of sales growth
rates and gross profit margins adopted in the
preparation of the discounted cash flows forecast
with reference to our understanding of the
business, historical trends and available industry
information and market data;

J DERMEED  BELBEURNESNTERER
LS8BT  AHhAERMRE e RERAR
KAMHEEEREREMENESEMY

o evaluating the sensitivity analyses of key
assumptions prepared by the external valuer and
considering the resulting impact on the
conclusion reached by management and whether
there is any indication of management bias; and

J FHEINEB A ERTE £ EERERERNSREST I
ERHBEESEMNERNTE  URERFEE
MEEEREODTR &

o assessing the reasonableness of the disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment with reference to the requirements of
the prevailing accounting standards.

J SBIBITGA LN ER TRV BHmEPH
R BEMREREFGNEEELSE -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAS, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BYZBENRE
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBENRE

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Liu Hin Pan.

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

31 March 2023
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi) & Z20224 128318 1LFE (AARKEFIR)

| 2021
0224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 R ARBFIT
Revenue Iy &= 3 524,602 1,142,936
Cost of sales S5 B AN (515,297) (1,010,923)
Gross profit EF 9,305 132,013
Other net (loss)/income H % (E518), A 4 (56,114) 51,207
Administrative and other expenses 1T R E MR (62,258) (65,059)
Research and development costs s A (20,436) (62,889)
Impairment loss on trade and other B 5 K HAth FE YR IE LA I
receivables and contract assets ABHEBEERERSE 27(a) (69,954) (138,344)
Loss from operations BREBER (199,457) (83,072)
Finance cost B & B AR 5(a) (24,853) (34,898)
Loss before taxation BAIE B 5 (224,310) (117,970)
Income tax Frig i 6(a) 8,235 24,012
Loss for the year FREER (216,075) (93,958)
Loss per share BREER 9
Basic and diluted (RMB) EXREE(ARE) (0.35) (0.15)

The notes on pages 79 to 163 form part of these financial

Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEERkEMZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi) ZZE2022F12 A31 B IEFE (AAREEFITR)

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE TR ARETIT
Loss for the year  FRE® | 16,075) | (93,958)
Other comprehensive income for the year FRHEAMZE R
Iitem that is or may be reclassified subsequently —E{ZE b AJpEEF 7 EE
to profit or 10ss: BommEE
Exchange differences on translation of financial — # & /B A3 A SMEE 75
statements of operations outside mainland TS HRARMIE & E5
China 461) (60)
Other comprehensive income for the year ~~ #WHMEEKE | @en | (60
Total comprehensive income for the year FARHERSEAE (216,536) (94,018)

The notes on pages 79 to 163 form part of these financial %#79Z 1638 KM% Z W Bk A —6
statements. @ e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B R R

At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi) 72022128318 (AAREFIR)

| 2021
0224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 R ARBFIT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment L 10 420,913 625,515
Intangible assets mpEE 11 1,842 2,830
Receivables under service concession  RRIEHEFFHELZHIE TH
arrangement JiE W ke 17 21,842 25,407
Deferred tax assets EEFIBEE 24(b) 40,716 31,795
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 12 22,367 36,141
507,680 721,688
Current assets REBEE
Inventories 7E 14 4,575 17,277
Contract assets BHEE 15(a) 280,659 470,144
Trade and other receivables B 5 & Efth e UL FRIE 16(a) 664,787 781,493
Prepayments SEENEN 16(b) 18,982 35,872
Receivables under service concession  RAEFHHFELZHETH
arrangement JE Wk T8 17 9,279 7,410
Restricted bank balances SR HIRIT 554 18 19,352 52,197
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkRESEEY 19 149,817 92,973
1,147,451 1,457,366
Current liabilities REBAEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b e IR 20 549,108 716,648
Contract liabilities AHBE 15(b) 377 3,122
Loans and borrowings BERRER 21 214,155 256,469
Lease liabilities HEAE 22 209 88
Current taxation BN ER T 18 24(a) 9,356 8,928
773,205 985,255
Net current assets RBEEFE 374,246 472,111

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R

At 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi) 72022128318 (AAREFIR)

2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR®T T ARBFIT
Non-current liabilities kRBERS
Loans and borrowings BERRER 21 103,246 185,694
Lease liabilities HEBE 22 203 277
Other non-current liabilities HiERS ARG 25 6,503 19,318
109,952 205,289
NET ASSETS EEFE 771,974 988,510
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#E
Share capital fi% 7 26(C) 5,671 5,671
Reserves s 766,303 982,839
TOTAL EQUITY B 771,974 988,510

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  R202343831H £ 5 & #t f I & 5% # %

31 March 2023. 1T °
Xun Minghong He Wenlin

HRBA 1A ST AR

Director Director

EZE EZE

The notes on pages 79 to 163 form part of these financial 579&163E KM FBKZETHRERN—
statements. 5 e

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2022



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERRER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi) & Z20224 128318 1LFE (AARKEFIR)

Share Share Other Retained
capital premium reserves profits Total

BAE  ROEE HRE  RENE st

\WCH  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
E AR%TRE ARBTR AR®TR ARMTR AR%®T:R

Balance at 1 January 2021 B2021F1818M&ER | SO7M 044 488422 394338 1093345
Changes in equity for 2021: R2021 FHREEEE
Loss for the year FAEE = = = (93,958) (93,958)
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wl — - (60) = (60)
Total comprenensive income  EMme® I S (60) (93958 | (94,018)
Appropriation to statutory reserve BB AT HE = = 4,147 (@,147) —
Appropriation to special reserve  EEEL 2 A EZRRE

for production safety = = 5,793 (5,793 =
Dividends approved in respect LEEEHERS

of the previous year 26(D) = (10,817) = = (10,817)

Balance at 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318 K

_and 1 January 2022 02F1A1AKER | 5,671 194,097 498,302 290440 988,510
Changes in equity for 2022: 20225 HERE -
Loss for the year FREE — — — (216,075)  (216,075)
Other comprehensive income Hi2E Rz — — (461) — (461)
Total comprenensive income  Ebme® o R (@e1)  (216075)  (216,536)
Appropriation to statutory reserve  ZI1#Z A E RE — — 358 (358) —
Appropriation to special reserve  EEEL R A ERERFE

for production safety — — 1,450 (1,450) —

Balance at 31 December 2022 R2022F12831HH
Ze 5,671 194,097 499,649 72,557 771,974

o

The notes on pages 79 to 163 form part of these financial #79Z 1638 &M LAk % F B 75 MK 79— 0
statements. P2
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

RERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Expressed in Renminbi) 2202212 8318 1EFE (AARKETIIR)

| 2021
0224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B &E R ARET T
Operating activities RETH
Cash generated from operations KEEENRE 19(b) 211,746 283,646
Income tax paid BT FTiSH (257) (9,488)
Net cash generated from operating RETHEENRSEE
ACHVIeS e 211,489 NN 274,158
Investing activities REED
Payments for the purchase of property, BEBE®Z « BE KR
plant and equipment (BN (28,740) (290,409)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BEME&E
plant and equipment Fr{S 58 91,533 48,258
Payment for purchase of intangible BERLEENRK
assets — (193)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RETBDEE(FA) B
_investing activities Re®® 62,793 | | (242,344)
Financing activities MEED
Proceeds from new bank loans and FERITERREAERK
other borrowings FriS 38 19(c) 126,627 144,055
Repayment of bank loans and other ERRITEFREMER
borrowings 19(c) (212,036) (187,698)
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERSERT D 19(c) (355) (1,269)
Payment for acquisition of equipment A% BT B AR EH
by instalments B 19(c) (48,783) (24,355)
Payments for capital element of ERMEABR ZEENES
obligations arising from sale and ok NE ISR SN
leaseback transactions 19(c) (54,477) (26,459)
Interests paid B F B 19(c) (28,541) (33,053)
Dividends paid BT E — (10,817)
Payment of listing expenses EmERMK — (125)
Net cash used in financing activities ~BEZEBIANREFR | (217,565) | | (139.721)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERBEEEY
cash equivalents ®inGRd) BEE 56,717 (107,907)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R1A1HHNRERES
£EY 19(a) 92,973 200,884
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXS BN E 127 (4)
Cash and cash equivalents at R12A31HMNRER
31 December BHEEEY 19(a) 149,817 92,973

The notes on pages 79 to 163 form part of these financial

Statements.

AN

o o
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1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 SR R B

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

BEREREE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASS") and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain amendments to HKFRSS
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Group. Note 1(c)
provides information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the
Group for the current accounting period reflected in
these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2022 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"), rounded to the nearest thousand. RMB
is the functional currency and the reporting currency for
the Company’s subsidiaries established in mainland
China. The functional currency of the Company is Hong
Kong Dollars. The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the historical
cost basis.

1
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the
basis of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in Note 2.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2022

1

EXRE7HBUR (&)

(b)

P wmaRm R E % ()

REEEM B RELEAN BRI
BREKREEEBEHHE 7
At R ARER - ik F T fEE R
BREFESTHRNEAINA R
BE BE KWEMAXHWER
TR ZFHFT RERRKRIE
RBELREERBBERTRS
BEMNSHEMAREL  H&
RIBAKEREEE B E b R RFEE
MEE KRB EMREEFD A
MER BERGERIBINZS
fliat e

ZEMFRAEBRRSFHETIA
=B - ST AT ERTEHE
HEFTNHRELTZE - QI ERH
BTN ZHE AR - BT
U NARPHEDELETE
AR H % & /T B K R SR i
MR o

EEERNERE LM REER
RSN RREEATE
B FI B A R (5T N EERE MEE R B
EBERRENMFE2



(c)

(d)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued the following amendments to
HKFRSs that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group:

o Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, plant and
equipment: Proceeds before intended use

o Amendments to HKAS 37, Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets: Onerous contracts
— cost of fulfilling a contract

None of these developments have had a material effect
on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or
presented. The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MRk M et

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 1 EBEXGsHBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
(d) Subsidiaries (Continued) d) MEBXT (&)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that
subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognised
in profit or 10ss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see Note 1(i)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

()

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
Note 1(i)ii)).

Items may be produced while bringing an item of
property, plant and equipment to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management. The proceeds
from selling any such items and the related costs are
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of
an item of property, plant and equipment are determined
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are recognised in
profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated
residual value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

e Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
e Motor vehicles 3-10 years
e Tools 3-10 years
e Electronic equipment 3-5 years
¢ Right-of-use assets (Note 1(h)(i)) 3-5 years
¢ | easehold improvements 3 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any, are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see Note 1(i)ii)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or l0ss on a straight-line basis over the
assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible
assets with finite useful lives are amortised from the date
they are available for use and their estimated useful lives
are as follows:

e Software
e Licenses

10 years
3-5 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are
reviewed annually.

(e)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(8

Service concession arrangement

The Group has entered into a service concession
arrangement, which is a Build-Operate-Transfer (“the
BOT") arrangement. Under the BOT arrangement, the
Group carries out construction work of upgrading the
facilities of the sewage treatment and receives in return
a right to operate the infrastructure for a specified
period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in
accordance with the pre-established conditions set by
certain government authority (“the Grantor”). The
infrastructure should be transferred to the Grantor with
nil consideration at the end of the Service Concession
Period.

(i) Consideration given by the Grantor

A financial asset (receivable under a service
concession arrangement) is recognised to the
extent that the Group has an unconditional right to
receive cash or another financial asset from the
Grantor for the construction service rendered and/
or the consideration paid and payable by the Group
for the right to charge users of the public service.
The Group has unconditional right to receive cash
if the Grantor contractually guarantees to pay the
Group specified or determinable amounts or the
shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and specified or
determinable amounts. The financial assets
(receivables under service concession arrangement)
are accounted for in accordance with the policy set
out in Note 1().

Revenue relating to operating services are
accounted for in accordance with Note 1(s)ii)(a)
below. Costs for operating services are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(g) Service concession arrangement (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Construction and upgrade services

The fair value of the construction and upgrade
service under the service concession arrangement
is calculated as the estimated total construction
costs plus a profit margin. The profit margin is
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based
on prevailing market rate applicable to similar
construction service rendered in similar location at
the date of agreement.

Revenue relating to construction or upgrade
services is accounted for in accordance with Note
1(S)(0)(0).

Contractual obligations to restore the infrastructure
to a specified level of serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must
fulfil as a condition of its licences, that is, (i) to
maintain the facilities of sewage treatment it
operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or
(i) to restore the plants to a specified condition
before they are handed over to the Grantor at the
end of the Service Concession Period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the
sewage and reclaimed water treatment and water
distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the
policy set out in Note 1(r).

(® MBBIHFEZE (&)

(i)

(iii)

R F B
RS R R IE TRER
FH RS A TR
RRSERCA I o
BE BB A B EAR
5 A B L SRR
B 12 (OB R SRS VR
ot TSR

B BRI AR B Y as
THiR B FEUS)()D) AFR ©

MEERFERERBEED
KFEHENERE

EREFFTAI MR - A&
BEBTAMNEE  B()#
FrHPTE )5 /KEEIE R i
B IR %5 B D 1 & 1 R KR
K/ sk (i) IR T 455 R4S & B
R REZFEIRBR TR
T AZ B IREE 25 E K
o R RIREIS KR BE
IKERIE RAKBR & HEE
(F+ AR ER SN AR SR B BE(N AR
HBCRMERLETE -

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed where
the customer has both the right to direct the use of the
identified asset and to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from that use.

i)  As a lessee

Where the contract contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

At the lease commencement date, the Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability,
except for short-term leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less and leases of low-value
assets which, for the Group are primarily steel
pipes. When the Group enters into a lease in
respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease
basis. The lease payments associated with those
leases which are not capitalised are recognised as
an expense on a systematic basis over the lease
term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is
initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments payable over the lease term, discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be readily determined, using a
relevant incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated
using the effective interest method. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or rate
are not included in the measurement of the lease
liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2022

1

EXRE7HBUR (&)

(h)

HEEE

AEERENNGBTEBEBEHN
EEEBHEARSHE - KA
RBRAEME —BREBABE
2H 2 BRI EE  RIZENEHE
EXBEHE HEFAEET
ERERMNEERESZERE
EEBREE D R 2 - RIE S
BoEE -

(i EHREEA

WeEFEs —HEEXRN
R—E%ZREINAE LI
HEMXM, - A ABIRER
BRI 2 HE EBERKIE
HERD 2 BB ERBNE
BHTFHRESETRER
gt -

AEBNEERE R HER
EREEENEERE K
MEHA12EARDR12(E
AREHEERKEERE
(AKEMS TERM
B)HERIN - NREBEE
EBEEER LHERRZES
HEEEREREKHEBE
EERNE - BREAXCHE
MHEZEENRTREERA
BMAGEERRAR AR
= -

REXRLBEER  HEEE
MIaMEE AR ES N 2
MEMFRERR - EHH
EREHEREEIRY - WA
KEERBTHMERE - Bl
PRI S B F KB -
REHERR  HERER
B GT B R A B FRXR
REBRFZEFE « FEUR
RIE— A Ry 2
ENRAABREREF
At TEEENRR
HEA 2@ RN ERT
BR -



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)
@

Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which
comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
plus any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, and any initial direct costs
incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the
right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on
which it is located, discounted to their present
value, less any lease incentives received. The
right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see Notes 1(e) and 1(i)(ii)).

The initial fair value of refundable rental deposits is
accounted for separately from the right-of use
assets in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to investments in debt securities carried
at amortised cost. Any difference between the
initial fair value and the nominal value of the
deposits is accounted for as additional lease
payments made and is included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a
change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index or rate, or there is a change in
the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in
this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is
recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

1

@

As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is
a change in the scope of a lease or the
consideration for a lease that is not originally
provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is
remeasured based on the revised lease payments
and lease term using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.

In the consolidated statement of financial position,
the current portion of long-term lease liabilities is
determined as the present value of contractual
payments that are due to be settled within twelve
months after the reporting period.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property,
plant and equipment” and presents lease liabilities
in "loans and borrowings” separately in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

For sale and leaseback transactions, the Group
considers whether the initial transfer of the
underlying asset to the buyer-lessor is a sale. The
Group applies HKFRS 15 to determine whether a
sale has taken place.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is a sale, the
Group derecognises the underlying asset and
applies the lessee accounting model to the
leaseback — the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at the retained portion of the previous
carrying amount (i.e. at cost), and recognises only
the amount of any gain or loss related to the rights
transferred to the lessor.

When the transfer to buyer-lessor is not a sale, the
Group continues to recognise the underlying asset,
and recognises a financial liability for any amount
received from the buyer-lessor.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h) Leased assets (Continued)

(i)

As a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at
lease inception whether each lease is a finance
lease or an operating lease. A lease is classified as
a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of an
underlying assets to the lessee. If this is not the
case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.

When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration
in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. The rental income
from operating leases is recognised in accordance
with Note 1(s)(ii)(a).

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, the
sub-leases are classified as a finance lease or as
an operating lease with reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the
head lease is a short-term lease to which the
Group applies the exemption described in
Note 1(h)(i), then the Group classifies the sub-lease
as an operating lease.

All the leases are operating leases from the
Group’s perspective. The Group recognises lease
payments received under operating leases as
income on a straight-line basis over the lease term
as part of “Revenue”.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Credit losses and impairment of assets

1

@i

@

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for
expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) on the following
items:

— financial assets measured at amortised cost
(including cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and other receivables and
receivables under service concession
arrangement); and

— contract assets as defined in HKFRS 15 (see
Note 1(k)).

Measurement of ECLS

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the
difference between the cash flows due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using
the following discount rates where the effect of
discounting is material:

—  fixed-rate financial assets, trade and other
receivables and contract assets: effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition
or an approximation thereof; and

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLS (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort. This includes
information about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Loss allowances for trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables under
service concession arrangement are always
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLS.
ECLs on these financial assets are estimated using
a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the reporting date.

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at
the reporting date with that assessed at the date of
initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when
(i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by
the Group to actions such as realising security (if
any is held); or (i) the financial asset is 90 days
past due. The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

contract assets (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

— failure to make payments of principal or
interest on their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a financial instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available),

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor; and

— existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor's ability to meet its
obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the financial
instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an
individual basis or a collective basis. When the
assessment is performed on a collective basis, the
financial instruments are grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit
risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL
amount is recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an
impairment gain or loss for all financial instruments
with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying
amount through a loss allowance account.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2022

1

FERAREERE (&)

)

@

ERMTARGHNEEELEW
FEEX(#)

1= EEREZE N (E)
LEERE B TR HERRE
ERBRERREENE - &
ZRIATER

— KREEAWNEHAEX
NAZHAE

— SRIAINFFHAH
MEEF&R (WA E
R TR B E B

_ YN T bl
STEHEERL &

— iﬁiﬁ(a%&?ﬁ
 RBESORRE) E’Jfﬁ
ﬁ&ﬁ A2k B A T
ABTHEHAEEE
EHRENBREAD
bz

RESRTANKLE 5
[ ez 8 2 3 0 9 T (e 2 (E B
TH B s REEEETT o BT
AR EEREITR - %
REepTANEREERR
B (PlmBBHREREE
R EEAR) 8548 o

BHEERAESERS B
HMEHE  WRBB S
ﬁu/u{éiﬁﬁqlﬂﬁgi)f % B
B - TEHHEETE%H%"EE’\J
EEEHERRPHERR
MEWR R EE - NEERE
R T ANRERENE
1B 2FBEXERRY
HEEmBEETHERE -



@

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

Credit losses from financial instruments and
contract assets (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note
1(s)(ii)(b) is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial
asset is credit-impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss allowance)
of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A
financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial instruments and

(i)

contract assets (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
lease receivable or contract asset is written off
(either partially or in full) to the extent that there is
no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally
the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay
the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was
previously written off are recognised as a reversal
of impairment in profit or loss in the period in
which the recovery occurs.

Impairment of other non-current assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
identify indications that the following assets may be
impaired, an impairment loss previously recognised
no longer exists or may have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment, including
right-of-use assets (other than property
carried at revalued amounts);

— intangible assets; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company'’s

statement of financial position.
If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (for
example, head office building) is allocated to
an individual cash generating unit if the
allocation can be done on a reasonable and
consistent basis, or to the smallest group of
cash-generating units if otherwise.

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated to reduce
the carrying amount of the other assets in
the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata
basis, except that the carrying value of an
asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs of disposal (if
measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

() FERAREEREGA)

(i) HAMFRBHEERE(H)

FHE AT % B

BEMNAIROERER
HRFER SRR
RERBEMETH
BeE NitHhEs
EER  SEMBERN
A BH 3R K {4 5T AR
KEEREMKAEH
B ZUAXEER
BR T 35 & B P AT A B9
EREREBENZE
ENEBRR - HE
EYREERKEE
EBIREMEET
REBRRERE AR
BYRBMREREN
&/NMEREE (RS
EEEN) REFE AW
Bl &8 - WA £ 5 HE
K — B AR FETT
DB BIRREE (fi
IAEEARR) B —B 2
fREES R T @5

ReELXEM BRI
PTERTRNINESE
HEEBMHER -
153 )8 18 5 18
BEEAEXEMBN
ReELBMHRE

BEfEEHEA KD
BOAEHEBRETE
RBEBR AR
B4 B R AR E
e g AR B
(RZMEM) EME
EHREER LA
B EEEREET
ERMLEBRNREARE
B2 SRR & R
(gt 8) HEME
B (HEEEE)

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

@i

()

Credit losses and impairment of assets
(Continued)

(ii)  Impairment of other non-current assets (Continued)

—  Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment l0ss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are assets which are held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, in the process of production
for such sale or in the form of materials or supplies to
be consumed in the production process or in the
rendering of services.

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average basis. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold/utilised, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

U

Contract assets and contract liabilities

A contract asset is recognised when the Group
recognises revenue (see note 1(s)) before being
unconditionally entitled to the consideration under the
payment terms set out in the contract. Contract assets
are assessed for expected credit losses (ECL) in
accordance with the policy set out in note 1(i)(i) and are
reclassified to receivables when the right to the
consideration has become unconditional (see note 1(1)).

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue (see note 1(s)). A contract liability would also be
recognised if the Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue. In such cases, a corresponding
receivable would also be recognised (see note 1(l)).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented. For
multiple contracts, contract assets and contract liabilities
of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.

Receivables under service concession
arrangement and trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration
is due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group
has an unconditional right to receive consideration, the
amount is presented as a contract asset (see note 1(k)).

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component are initially measured at their
transaction price. Trade receivables that contain a
significant financing component and other receivables are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs. All
receivables are subsequently stated at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method and including an
allowance for credit losses (see note 1(i)(i)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEFTHESN © HIUAREFR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

1

(n)

(0)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for
expected credit losses (ECL) in accordance with the
policy set out in note 1(i)i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Subsequent to initial recognition, trade and other
payables are stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at invoice amount.

Loans and borrowings

Loans and borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see Note 1(u)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(p)

(q)

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the
year in which the associated services are rendered by
employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated
at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local defined contribution
retirement schemes pursuant to the relevant labour rules
and regulations in the PRC are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as incurred.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the vyear, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(q

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which
a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and
are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which
the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to
be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent
that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(q

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on a
net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each future
period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise
the current tax assets and settle the current
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and
settle simultaneously.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(r)

(s)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a
provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party,
a Separate asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually certain. The
amount recognised for the reimbursement is limited to
the carrying amount of the provision.

Revenue and other income

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it
arises from the sale of goods, the provision of services
or the use by others of the Group’s assets under leases
in the ordinary course of the Group’s business.

The Group is the principal for its revenue transactions
and recognises revenue on a gross basis. In determining
whether the Group acts as a principal or as an agent, it
considers whether it obtains control of the services/
products before they are transferred to the customers.
Control refers to the Group’s ability to direct the use of
and obtain substantially all of the remaining benefits from
the services/products.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(s)

@

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when control over a product
or service is transferred to the customer at the
amount of promised consideration to which the
Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties such
as value added tax or other sales taxes.

@)

construction contracts

The Group’s construction activities under
construction contracts with customers for
office premises and residential buildings
create or enhance real estate assets
controlled by the customers.

When the outcome of a construction contract
can be reasonably measured, revenue from
the contract is recognised over time during
the construction process using output method
based on direct measurements of the value of
contract work performed to provide a faithful
depiction of the transfer of those services.

The likelihood of the Group earning
contractual bonuses for early completion or
suffering contractual penalties for late
completion are taken into account in making
these estimates, such that revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will
not occur. The Group applies the most likely
amount approach to estimate such variable
consideration by considering the single most
likely amount in a limited range of possible
consideration amounts, taking into account
the Group’'s current progress and future
performance expectations compared to the
agreed completion timeline.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue and other income (Continued)

1

(s)

@

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

@)

b)

©

Construction contracts (Continued)
When the outcome of the contract cannot be
reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred
that are expected to be recovered.

The Group’s construction contracts include
payment schedules which require stage
payments over the construction period once
milestones are reached. The Group also
typically agrees to a retention for 3% to 5%
of the contract value. The retention period
normally ranges from one to two years upon
the completion of work. To the extent that
the difference in timing arises for reasons
other than the provision of finance, no
significant financing component is deemed to
exist. Otherwise, the Group has taken
advantage of the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not
adjust the consideration for any effects of a
significant financing component if the period
of financing is 12 months or less.

Revenue from sewage treatment

Revenue from sewage treatment is
recognised when the relevant service is
rendered.

Sales of construction materials and equipment
Revenue is recognised when the customers
take possession of and accepts the
construction materials and equipment.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1 EXSFEEE)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)
(ii) Revenue from other sources and other income

@)

b)

©

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual
basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to
the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the
consolidated statements of financial position
initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as income
in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the
same periods in which the expenses are
incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1

(t)

(u)

(v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
profit or 10ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the date on
which the Company initially recognises such
non-monetary assets or liabilities.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates approximating the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in
equity in the exchange reserve.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties

(@ A person, or a close member of that person’s family,
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

0)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the

entity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B RBFTIESN - HIAAREFIR)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(w) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and are
similar in respect of the nature of products and services,
the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a
majority of these criteria.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements
and other uncertainties affecting application of those policies
and the sensitivity of reported results to changes in condition
and assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing
the consolidated financial statements. The significant
accounting policies are set forth in Note 1. The Group believes
the following critical accounting policies involve the most
significant judgements and estimates used in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements.

(@) Revenue recognition of construction contracts

As explained in policy Note 1(s)(i)(a), revenue from
construction contracts are recognised over time. Revenue
on uncompleted projects is dependent on estimating the
outcome of the contract. The Group recognises revenue
based on direct measurements of the value of contract
work performed, which is mainly reflected by the
progress certificates issued by customers. The customers
will provide final account when the whole project is
completed and may have adjustments on the amount
recognised to date according to the actual surveys of
work performed at completion. Subject to the
adjustments in final accounts, actual outcomes in terms
of total revenue may be higher or lower at the end of
the reporting period, which would affect the revenue in
future periods as an adjustment to the amounts recorded
to date.
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEFTHESN © HIUAREFR)

2 ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENT AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

(b)

(9]

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

If circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment may not be recoverable,
the asset may be considered impaired, and an
impairment loss may be recognised. Determining whether
property, plant and equipment that has indication of
impairment requires an estimation of the value in use of
the property, plant and equipment that are considered
impaired. The calculation of value in use involves
estimating future cash flows, sales growth rates, gross
profit margin and pre-tax discount rates. The
management of the Group also engage an independent
valuer to carry out the calculation of the value in use.
Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
disclosed in note 10.

Impairment of trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables
under service concession arrangement

The impairment assessment of trade receivables, bills
receivable, contract assets and receivables under service
concession arrangement of the Group is based on the
evaluation of collectability and ageing analysis of these
assets as well as other quantitative and qualitative
information and calculated the lifetime ECLs based on
credit loss experience, and on management’s judgement
and assessment of the forward-looking information.
Significant judgement and estimates is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these assets, based
on the current creditworthiness, the past collection
history and subsequent settlements of each customer. If
the financial conditions of customers of the Group
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to
make payments, additional impairment may be required.

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED  Annual Report 2022

2

=T H R A Et ()

(b)

(0

M~ BERRERE
ERARAME  BERREN
R T 71 Al S8 A M 2] - B 2
BRI R AR - AT AR R (E
FER-BETN% BERRER
EBEERETRBEGARRR
RERYE - WS R R ENER
{E1E - (A EE O ES Rt
KREBRERE HEWREE
MERBAMRE - KEEERE
B N 2% B8 B X1 (B B HE 1T 48 PR (B
ERE - 7R E S B H R
1B BB EE 10 5 -

BEZ RN - BKREE
BHREERRBETERE
H T B BB WK R R E
AEENE S RKKE  BRE
B ANEERRBISFFERZHE
TR TS B JE Wk IR B Rk 1B R 17 TH AR
BHZEEEA KB NG R
RO MAREMMEEREREE
FHETT ARBEERRERK
& IE [ S AT IE 1 B R e H B K2 R
B EFENBEREREREX - &
BEEENBRATRPABNGE
B2 OBEMNUREERERE
B A ERFEENRKER
B ERH A5 - 2R
AEEEFAMBARRBEMEE
EEEEN  ARBAIEAFH
BINREE -



(@)

Revenue

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of
construction service, leasing of construction machinery,
equipment and tools, and provision of sewage treatment

service in mainland China.

Wi K 2 8P| &

Wy =
AEBEMEEETEETEAL
RHRERY  RERM  RE
AITAME  AREHSKERE
AR5

(i) Disaggregation of revenue i) Ww=nBED
| 2021
0224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
=1.- ARBFIT
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEHREER
customers within the scope of 153X EEARE
HKFRS 15 BEF AWK E
Disaggregated by major REFEZERIRBEES
products or service lines
— Revenue from construction — — AR zE
service 313,554 854,773
— Revenue from sewage — J5KEE I AR TS W e
treatment service 5,111 5,170
— Revenue from equipment — RBEEE R W=
operation service 43,646 48,912
— Others* — HAfth* 1,665 39,150
363,976 948,005
Revenue from other sources H i 2R B9 W &=
— Revenue from leasing of — BEEW - RER
construction machinery, TAHAEKE
equipment and tools 160,626 194,931
524,602 1,142,936

* Others mainly represents sales of construction
materials and provision of certain logistic

Services.

* HitEBHEEEMH
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MRk M et
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN - HUAREFR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WakoaHHE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Revenue (Continued) (@ W= (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue (Continued) (i) W=EdEs (8
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETT
Disaggregated by timing of UK EREBE 5
revenue recognition
— Over time — BERFE 522,937 1,103,786
— Point in time — RE— 5 ER 2 1,665 39,150
Total et 524,602 1,142,936

Yo 25 15 7 5= B W 25 10% 35 A
EOEERPHEIIMT

Revenue from major customers which accounts for
10% or more of the Group's revenue are set out

below:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETT
Customer B 5FB 249,241 411,255
Customer A EFEA 54,206 276,137

Details of concentrations of credit risk arising from
these customers are set out in Note 27(a).

BERZEEFELNEESR
PR ESE R
27(a)

(i) Revenue expected to be recognised in the future iy FEHRBABRIANELEANS
arising from contracts with customers in existence RBEEHMREEFMTE
at the reporting date K H 2

As at 31 December 2022, the aggregated amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations under the Group’s existing
contracts is RMB7,596,000 (2021: RMB242,165,000).
The Group will recognise the expected revenue in
future when or as the work is completed, which is
expected to occur over the next 12 months (2021:
next 36 months).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)
3 WakoaHHE (&)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(CONTINUED)

(@)

(b)

Revenue (Continued)

(iii) Total future minimum lease payments receivable by
the Group

As at 31 December 2022, total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in place will be receivable by the Group
were RMB8,865,000 (2021: RMB11,323,000). All
these lease payments were receivable within one
year.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by service lines. In a
manner consistent with the way in which information is
reported internally to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment. No geographical segment
analysis is presented as substantially all assets, liabilities,
revenue and gross profit of the Group are attributable to
the operations in the PRC.

The Group has four separate segments as follows:

—  Provision of construction service (“Construction
service”);

— Provision of leasing services of construction
machinery, equipment and tools, and equipment
operation service (“Equipment operation service”);

—  Provision of sewage treatment service (“Sewage
treatment operation”); and

— Sales of construction materials and others
(“Others”).

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results based
on the revenue and gross margins of Construction
service, Equipment operation service, Sewage treatment
operation and Others.

(@)

(b)

W (48)
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A R #8,865,0007T (2021
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B HS 3R 3R =
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (xS HBFATHEIN - HAAREETIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WmEKko#®E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEREFHE (&)
(i) Reportable segment revenue and gross (loss)/profit () WEIBREREE) A

op 0 O 0
= L
2 % R 3 L s 43
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
Year ended 31 December 2022  HZ20225
12A31ALEE
Revenue Wzs 313,554 204,272 5,111 1,665 524,602
Cost of sales HEKA (368,584)  (140,649) (4,464) (1,600)  (515,297)
Reportable segment gross (loss)/  REHEHE(8),/
profit il (55,030) 63,623 647 65 9,305
Year ended 31 December 2021  EZ20215
12A31ALEE
Revenue W 854,773 243,843 5,170 39,150 1,142,936
Cost of sales HEMA (8103200 (158,430) (4,478 (37,699) (1,010,923)
Reportable segment gross profit & 5 HEF 44,453 85,413 696 1,451 132,013
Substantially all of the Group’s revenue were REEBARE D W=REIRE
arising from mainland China. The Group does not PR - BRAEE SR
allocate any specific assets or expenditure for TREEREYRFEREHEE
property, plant and equipment to the operating BEEREDIFHRER - &
segments as the Group’s senior executive SEWERYE  BE MK
management does not use the information to HBo AR EENRL
measure the performance of the reportable EREDE o

segments.
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development activities. There were no unfulfilled conditions
relating to the grants.

Notes to the Financial Statements
b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)
3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WakoHHRE (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) ZEREF|E (&)
(ii)  Reconciliations of reportable segment profit or loss (i) HEDWERHY IR
| 2021
022 4 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARBFIT
Reportable segment gross WwEDHEF
profit 9,305 132,013
Other net (loss)/income H % (B1E) A (56,114) 51,207
Administrative and other TERREMRAR
expenses (62,258) (65,059)
Research and development — #i3&H
costs (20,436) (62,889)
Impairment losses on assets HEEFALMELNEE
arising from contracts with  JE{EEIE
customers (69,954) (138,344)
Finance costs & B AN (24,853) (34,898)
Consolidated loss before REBRIEE
taxation (224,310) (117,970)
4 OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 4 HF (BB WA
| 2021
0224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
R AR®ET T
Interest income MEMA 3,562 3,250
Government grants* I8 #ed A * 882 7,104
Gain on disposal of property, plant and  HE¥Z - BE &KX EK R
equipment 30,875 40,555
Impairment loss on property, plant and  ¥1% - &= M REREEE
equipment (93,436) —
Others EAh 2,003 298
(56,114) 51,207
3 Government grants mainly represented rewards for research and & BURT 6 Bh = 2T 28 B A 528 5%

78 B 37 BRSO fR A
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkHHEFTHEIN - IAAREZITR)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 WAIBE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: HATESIEE Mk ¢
(@) Finance costs (@ BMERA
| 2021
| 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ARBF T
Interest on bank loans and other  SR{TEZ R EMERAF S
borrowings 14,428 22,389
Interest on lease liabilities HEABEMFE 32 7
Finance charges on sale and ERMEERFHIHEER
leaseback transactions 6,880 4,505
Interest on acquisition of VA9 BA SR I A RREEE A Y
equipment by instalments FE 1,787 3,482
Other borrowing costs H {8 B A 1,726 4,515
24,853 34,898

(b) Staff costs (including directors’” emoluments)

b) ETRFX (BEESHE)

0 2021

0 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

R AREEFTT

Salaries, wages and other benefits #H& - T& R HMIEF] 49,691 88,551
Contributions to defined A ERFEERIREFIFT I

contribution retirement benefit (Ft5E23)
schemes (Note 23) 1,664 2,302
51,355 90,853
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Notes to the Financial Statements

b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkRAEFHESN - HAAREFIR)
5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 WHAaEE(&E)
(c) Other items Hig B
| 2021
022 1 20214
B’000 RMB’000
R AR¥T T
Depreciation e
— property plant and equipment — BB - BE k&
owned (Note 10()) (FfF#E10()) 71,580 88,999
— right-of-use assets (Note 10(i)) — f# A # & & (K &E10(ii) 227 340
71,807 89,339
Amortisation of intangible assets — #EF & E# (FiFE11)
(Note 11) 988 981
Expenses relating to short-term HEHEEEENER
leases 22,062 20,542
Auditors’ remuneration % ERRD B 2,980 3,380
Labour subcontracting fee BB E 324,121 495,720
Impairment loss on trade and other £ 5 K £ {th & U FRIE LA K
receivables and contract assets ABREEREBEESE 69,954 138,344
Impairment loss on property, plant % - &= &R &R EERE
and equipment 93,436 —
6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 6 MREBEBRPHFEN
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit REBERRPNBES
or loss represents:
| 2021
0 20214F
B’000 RMB'000
R AR®F T
Current tax — PRC Corporate BIR B E — e E ¥
Income Tax Frig#
Provision for the year FNE 686 9,225
Deferred tax — PRC Corporate BEHE — FEFFE
Income Tax Frig#
Origination and reversal of EERBEOTREER
temporary differences (8,921) (33,237)
(8,235) (24,012)
BREXBRARAT B -FFR @



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Reconciliation between tax credit and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

REBRBERPHAEHR (F)

(b) REABRIFTENHEER
HEMERZBNHER:

2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBF T
Loss before taxation HAIEE (224,310) (117,970)
Notional tax on loss before %27 AR 28 A FS B R
taxation, calculated at the rates FTERB AT EERER K
applicable to profits in the
countries concerned (55,693) (29,757)
Tax effect of non-deductible DA MF AT R &
expenses 193 159
Tax effect of super deduction for & E&HEEE B MT K
qualified research and W E
development costs (2,606) (8,365)
Tax effect of deductible temporary B 08 & b 14 = 2B Sl R TR
differences or unused tax losses REAFHIEBEOT B
not recognised we 29,034 98
Utilisation of previously FAAERERTIEEE
unrecognised tax losses (222) =
Effect on deferred tax balances at HEFRZFHEHN1A1H
1 January resulting from a change BT EE AR T E
in tax rate 175 —
Tax effect of PRC preferential tax HEFEWERFBNHG
treatments (Note (i) S22 (M FE)) 20,884 13,853
Actual tax credit ERHIEE R (8,235) (24,012)
Notes: B 5E -
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman (i) BIEFRENEREERZES

Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.
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(b)

(i

(i)

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(CONTINUED)

Reconciliation between tax credit and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

No provision was made for Hong Kong Profits Tax as the
Group did not earn any assessable profit that was subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

The Group's subsidiaries in mainland China is subject to
PRC corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25%.

In December 2022, lJianzhong Construction Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Jianzhong Construction Technology”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
obtained the state-level approval for its application of
High-tech Enterprise qualification and was granted the
qualification with effect from 14 December 2022. In
accordance with the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law (“CIT
Law"), the High-tech Enterprise qualification will be valid
for a period of three years from 2022 to 2024 and
entitles Jianzhong Construction Technology to a reduced
tax rate at 15% during this period.

In December 2020, Fujian Jianzhong Yantu Engineering
Co., Ltd. (originally named “Fujian linghai Engineering
Service Co., Ltd.") (“Jianzhong Yantu”), another indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, obtained the
state-level approval for its application of High-tech
Enterprise qualification and was granted the qualification
with effect from 1 December 2020. In accordance with
the CIT Law, the High-tech Enterprise qualification will be
valid for a period of three years from 2020 to 2022 and
entitles Jianzhong Yantu to a reduced tax rate at 15%
during this period.

REBRBERTHAEHR (F)

BRERABRIGTENBEER
HEnEREBENHER:
(&)

BaE - (88)

(i) AR ASBEREZ=2022F12 A
318 1L F [ I £ BRER (] 78 5%
ME B RS TR S F -
Al 1b 3 4 gk 2 7 45 B /B
% (20214F : 48) o

(i)  ALBERNPE RO E R A
TR R 25% B A FE Bt 2 B 4 R
EEMEH

AARMEEZEKBRARE
RERBEEREEAR ([
RERBE]) BRFR RN
E BRI A2022F 12 A EBE
Rt HESNERR
2022412 A1AB AR - 1R
(REAREMBEEMRBH
INTREMBRIED B
BB BRI A =F (A
20224 £2024%) - P&
MBI EREBAANZZRIZ15%8
=Ko

ARRM S —REEEZENE
AEBERTFELIIRABRE
FRAR(BHAIEREERET
EREERAAD(EFRS
T EHEESHRMEEERL
MR2020F12 8 BB B K& it
o EEERERN2020512
A1EBRAER - RIELEMEH
BT RIEEERNE K
A = & (B #£20204F £2022
F)  BEREIRHAZZRIZ
15% M Fi K o

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 3R R B =t

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (FkHHEFTHEIN - IAAREZITR)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 7 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIBE B R RHEBI S 383(1) 1§ K& A 7] (#
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BESH=ER) ROIE2HMAEENE
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of EMEAT

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

) 0 d be ) 0 |
4 R f 0

B/000 9 :.l-ll B/000 RMB’000 B'000
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Xun Minghong (Note () BB (@) — 218 228 4 450
Mr. He Wenlin (Note (a)) SO ot & (P (a) — 230 196 4 430
Ms. Zheng Ping (Note (a)) B it (M) — 206 194 - 400
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Yang Kaifa (Note (c)) B x4 () — - - - -
Mr. Wang Wei (Note (0)&(c)) FREEFEFOREC) — - - - -
Mr. Xun Liangbao HREXE — 163 — 10 173
Independent non-executive BYFGTES

directors
Mr. Sze Irons HEEEE 129 — — — 129
Mr. Wong Kun Kau HEREE 129 — — - 129
Mr. Zhu Diwu KR EE 129 — — — 129
387 817 618 18 1,840
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

7 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) 7 EEME (H)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2021
fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e EUHR ESIN 20214
HEWRE EWREF WIBTEA ST AR BEr

RMB'000 ~ RMB000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT ARBTT ARBTLT ARBTL

Executive directors BITEE

Mr. Xun Minghong (Note (a)) BRA %A (@) = 213 239 3 455

Mr. He Wenlin (Note (a)) fay STk o A (Bl 2t @) — 228 221 3 452

Ms. Zheng Ping (Note (a)) Bt (M) — 181 221 — 402

Non-executive directors FHTES

Mr. Yang Kaifa (Note (c)) R B £ (i) - - - - -

Mr. Wang Wei (Note (0)&(c)) FELE (D R(E) — - — - -

Mr. Xun Liangbao HREXE = 181 = 3 184

Independent non-executive BUFUTES

directors

Mr. Sze Irons MR E & 124 = = = 124

Mr. Wong Kun Kau BENEE 124 = = = 124

Mr. Zhu Diwu R 124 = = — 124

372 803 681 9 1,865

Notes: Bt 5E

(@  Mr. Xun Minghong, Mr. He Wenlin and Ms. Zheng Ping were also (@)  MEZE2022F %2021F12A31 B IEF
directors of the Group’s subsidiary, Jianzhong Construction [ AR A - UG R EBSE
Technology and/or employees of the Group for the years ended T IR EARE B M E A R R ER
31 December 2022 and 2021. MEHNEER SAEEES -

(by  Mr. Wang Wei were appointed as non-executive director on by FEEER2021F3IABEZER
30 March 2021. EHMITESE -

(0 Mr. Yang Kaifa and Mr. Wang Wei will not receive any (0 HBRBETERFEEEREREHZE
remuneration from the Group in accordance with the service B B T & U ER 7S £k (B 4 AT Fr
agreements during their term of office. There was no other B - Bl EE S NEXR B RNEEAFH
arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive P e B 22
any remuneration.

(d)  For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there were no d  REE2022F %2021F12 A31H IEF
amounts paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of B AEBEYESNXKENEETE
the highest paid individuals set out in Note 8 below as an Fok T KIS E M A &= B A
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a T 1E AR 3|18 5 A AR S @ 5k 5 N
compensation for loss of office. AR E R H REN S EABER B (E o

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @



Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)

8 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 8

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, 3 (2021: 3)
are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in Note 7. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other 2 (2021:

REHFMAL

RESBHMALH 3% (20217 : 3
%) BEE - EFMAOHETRE - At
24 (20214 : 2%) AL 2 Hil a5

2) individuals are as follows:

mF -

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREF T

Salaries and other emoluments HokEMME 434 938
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAT 822 184
Retirement scheme contributions BRIRETEI R 24 18
1,280 1,140

The emoluments of the 2 (2021: 2) individuals with the highest
emoluments are within the following band:

EEFmALH - 248 (20215 : 28) A
TZHFMORIETIHRERA

2022 2021

2022 20214

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

AE N

Nil-HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000/ 7T 2 2
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)

LOSS PER SHARE 9 BRBE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss GARE AR EE TR AN RN R AR R MG
attributable to equity shareholder of the Company of B8 A R #216,075,0007T (20214 :© A
RMB216,075,000 (2021: RMB93,958,000) and the weighted FE#£93,958,0007T) R EFRN B BT E B
average number of 625,000,000 ordinary shares in issue during Jn#E 9 2625,000,000/% 51 & °
the year.
Diluted loss per share is equal to basic loss per share as there B R L 220224 202112 H318 1k
were no dilutive potential shares outstanding for the years FRENWEBITEINBEEEZRD K
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. BREEEBEENERENES -
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 ¥ -BERZE
| 2021
0224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt 5% = ARBET T
Property, plant and equipment owned BB - BHE k&R E (i) 420,515 625,009
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE (ii) 398 506
420,913 625,515

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @



Notes to the Financial Statements

b E e

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (xS HBFATHEIN - HAAREETIR)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 % BERZE(E)
(CONTINUED)

(i) Property, plant and equipment owned

() BRUZE BEKRE

Cost: A
At 1 January 2021 RONE1A18 503521 15,578 299,78 1418 1,695 821,690
Additions hE 268,53 507 26,359 - - 295,400
Disposals RE (64,009 (11671) (46,752) (68) (556) (123,00)
At 31 December 2021 and RONEN2ANBR

1 January 2022 NNE1A1R 708,052 4014 278,885 1,550 1139 994,040
Additions RE 10,980 = 2533 - - 13513
Disposals RE (50,514) (4,056) (53828) (185) = (108,583)
AU 31 December 2022 L B bo8,518 LA msw o N LI 898,970
Accumulated depreciation Rt FERHE:

and impairment:
At 1 January 2021 RANE1A18 157,861 10,826 174,134 1183 765 304,769
Charged for the year Epsriz 54,525 2352 31870 127 12 88,999
Written back on disposals R ERED (31,693) (9.973) (22.969) (103) — (64.737)
At 31 December 2021 and RONEN2ANBR

1 January 2022 NNE1R1E 180,693 3205 183,03 1207 890 369,031
Charge for the year Rz 51,155 312 19877 M 125 71,580
Impairment loss REEE 81,718 = 1,718 = = 93,43
Written back on disposals R ERED (23,051) (3.419) (28,957) (165) — (55,592)
At 31 December 202 monFnAyE moss 8 1o56r4 WS ws 478,455
Net hook value: RAFE:
At 31 December 2022 RAN2E128318 378,003 260 41,916 212 124 420,515
At 31 December 2021 RANE128318 527,359 1,209 95,849 13 219 625,009
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

10 % - BERFRE (&)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

)

Property, plant and equipment owned
(Continued)

All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group
are located in mainland China.

Impairment loss

In view of the weak sentiment of the real estate sector in
the PRC and the slowdown of repayment from the
Group's customers in the second half of 2022, the Group
expects that less construction revenue will be generated
in the future. This indicates that the property, plant and
equipment of the Group may be impaired. As a result,
the Group assessed the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment and the carrying amount
of property, plant and equipment was written down to
their recoverable amount of RMB420,515,000 and an
impairment loss of RMB93,436,000 was recognised
against the carrying amount. The recoverable amounts of
these assets were estimated based on their value in use
calculated. The calculations were carried out by an
independent valuer using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management, which cover
the estimated remaining useful life of the assets. To
account for the expected reduction in construction
revenue, these cash flow projections are using sales
growth rate of —63% and 3% for the first two years
respectively and 0% for the next three years. Other key
assumptions for the value in use calculations included
gross profit margins estimated on the basis of the
historical performance and management’s expectation of
the market development. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using a 0% sales growth
rate. These sales growth rates are based on the Group’s
budget, future business plan and the forecasts of the
relevant industries and do not exceed the average
long-term sales growth rate for the relevant industries.
The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount
rate of 14.5% which was determined by weighted
average cost of capital.

)

BREYE - BERRE (FE)

AEEMBEEME  BEK&E
IR B A -

REEE
ERPEFEHEITEIFE R
2022F THEFAEERFHER
WEE - REBFEFAREENE
ZhmBeRkd EXRALREE
R ZE -~ RE MR 1 A A 3R R
BB AEEFTEDE - B
ERFEHENAWE S5 &Y
¥ BMELIEHNEREDENRE
E ] Al & 58 A R #420,515,000
gL WL R E R R EE B A
R #93,436,0007T ° 2 & B ER A
WEeEDBREEFREETE
EET B o ST E Ty B HERD
BEEEEMENVKEEFA
BEREBEANET REEEN
HEt R ERFER - EEEZE
SWHMBHRELD  ZERER
= 885 B ER A BT AR 2 —63% K 3%
AR AL =F0%HHEZRER o
FHEEFENEAETEREE
EREFC¥EREEEH TS
BEREMNTBEHGITHERNER - AF
HA18 B3R & 8 TR 0% 1Yt &
WREHE ZEHEERXT)
BEASENTEE « RREKET
B REETERAmMEE &
BBREETENEHRBHEEE
EX -BeRELEARMEFY
B A BB TE /9 B AT BE 3R T 14.5%8
I o

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @



Notes to the Financial Statements

b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEFTHESN © HIUAREFR)
10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 10 % BERZE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Right-of-use assets (i) EFAEEE
The Group has obtained the right to use certain office/ rEBBREBEHERZARERSE
factory buildings through tenancy agreements. The leases FHAZE WE HERI—R
typically run for an initial period of 3 to 5 years. Some ABH=-ERF -ATHERSH
leases include an option to renew the lease when all REFEE A G R EE AR
terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes EE -MEEERENEHEEN
variable lease payments. The analysis of the net book Ko BEHEESI B 2EARESR
value of right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset EREFESNTEAT :
is as follows:
O 0
9 O :
i i 55
RMB’000
Balance as at 1 January 2021 7202141 A1 H K BR5R 355
Additions NE 491
Depreciation charge for the year FRFEFIR (340)
Balance as at 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 #2021 128318 &
2022F 1 A1 H K A5 506
Additions NE 402
Disposals BE (283)
Depreciation charge for the year FATERTIR (227)
Balance as at 31 December 2022 72022412 H31 B K 8458 398
(iii) Assets pledged as security for liabilities (i) HLFAEEBEERNEE
The Group had obtained specific bank loans and other AREERTEHERITERLEAM
borrowings to acquire some machinery and equipment & XA RS B 200 M K2 % 4 - T
and these machinery and equipment were pledged to the Z B R SR B R R T IRAT
bank until the settlement of the corresponding bank EEFEMEENRITERABL -
loans. As at 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of 2022412318 + BIRITE 5K
the machinery and equipment pledged for bank loans B EL b fi SR R A0 B AR 2 5 O
and other borrowings were RMB118,595,000 (2021 A I & 88 /3 A 5 118,595,0007T
RMB147,159,000) (Note 21(a)ii). (20214 : A K% 147,159,0007T)

(P zE21(a)(0) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

10 % - BERFRE (&)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

(iii) Assets pledged as security for liabilities

(iv)

(Continued)

The Group sold certain its machinery and equipment to
external parties and leased them back for a term of 3 to
4 vyears. The Group determined the transfers to
buyer-lessor were not sales under HKFRS15, thus the
Group continues to recognise the underlying assets, and
recognises financial liabilities for the considerations
received in accordance with the accounting policy set out
in Note 1(h)(i). No gain or loss were recognised from the
sale and leaseback transactions for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021. As at 31 December 2022,
the carrying amounts of the machinery and equipment
pledged for the aforementioned sale and leaseback
transactions were RMB127,527,000 (2021:
RMB196,649,000) (Note 21(b)).

Assets leased out under operating leases

During the year ended 31 December 2021, certain
machinery and equipment, i.e. tower cranes and
construction hoist, were acquired by the Group for
leasing purpose. As at 31 December 2021, the net book
value of these assets were RMB392,428,000.

Due to weak sentiment of the real estate sector in
mainland China, the principal businesses of the Group,
including the Construction Service and Equipment
operation service, were adversely impacted. To fully
utilise the Group’s assets, the assets were used to fulfill
the contracts of both Construction service and
Equipment operation service. The leases under
Equipment operation service typically run for a period of
6 to 12 months, with an option to renew the lease after
renegotiation. For future minimum lease payments will be
receivable by the Group in future periods, please refer to
Note 3(a)(iii).

(i) EHFEBERFONEE (&)

(iv)

AEBHINES THEMERE
WRERBMEEZ SN EME
BHREAF - AEERREEH
— M AEL AR IER B
RS R FE IS E TR T
HE  MAKEBEEERRIERE
B Wiz B 1) ()7 e Et
BEREWMHRERREHE
& o R E 20224 % 202112 A
JNHIEFEMERBRR S A
HeE SR AL (] U 25 B B 48 © 120224
12A31H " L ERARR S
EHROEHEZENRASER
AER#127,527,0007T (20214 A
R#196,649,0007T ) (BI7E21(b)) °

REKEHEHHEANEE

HE2021F12A31HILFEE - &
EEHABEENBES TED
Kt I mESZERERE R
2021512 H31H » ZEBENKE
HFE A AR #392,428,0007T °

AR BN E i E T 5B A E
HAKRENEEXRYE  BRER
ERBRREBELRY IR
THEE - BRI VAREELN
AE AHEAESIRRETRE
s Rk EEEERGNEH - &
HELRBEITNHEHE-—KRSH
NETZHEA REBERASE
o B BE AN 5 B R 0K 2 e R
MARREEBRE MK B2
#E3(a)i) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements

b E e
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)
11 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 11 BEEE
Software Licenses Total
B4 [t et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥T T AR¥ET T
Cost: BN :
At 1 January 2021 R2021F141H 909 3,300 4,209
Additions NE 193 = 193
At 31 December 2021, 1 January 72021 12H31H -
2022 and 31 December 2022 20221 A1 &
. 202%12A31H8 | iz 3300 4,402
Accumulated amortisation: RET e
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 298 293 591
Charge for the year F NG 103 878 981
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F12 8318 &
1 January 2022 2022 1H1H 401 1,171 1,572
Charge for the year FNETE 110 878 988
At31December 2022 W2022%12A331H | 511 2049 2,560
Net book value: BREFEE
At 31 December 2022 1K2022%12A331H 591 1,251 1,842
At 31 December 2021 M202112H318 701 2,129 2,830
12 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 12 HittERBEE
Other non-current assets mainly represent prepaid amounts for HEMIERBEETZRKEYE - #%
acquisition of properties, construction machinery, equipment M RERTANTEN -
and tools.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RHBATRE

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TREHINHARNEEEE  BEXEBE
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the EEEATENNBARZFE -

Group.

Company name

Place of
incorporation
and business

Particulars of
issued capital

Proportion of
ownership interest

Principal activities

il 2R
NE BB E 3 RA&zFHE BHEERLA TEERK
Held by the  Held by a
Company  subsidiary
NN MR
¥E BA
Jianzhong Holdings Limited BVI UsD1 100% — Investment holding
BRERERAA EERLHES E REZR
Jianzhong Holdings (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HKD1 — 100% Investment holding
Limited
BRER(ES)BRAA e 18T REEK
Jianzhong Construction Technology mainland China  RMB168,450,000 — 100% Provision of construction
(RRRTERBEREBREME services
AA])
BRERRE (RRERERER H B ARE RERERS
BEREELA) 168,450,0007T
Jinghai Yantu mainland China  RMB100,000,000 — 100% Production, sale, installation
(RERTELIREREM and leasing of construction
~a)) machinery, equipment and
tools and construction
material
mEET (RERTETIRAR FE A AR EE - HE RRRAERE
AR 100,000,0007T By RERIEREM
Fujian Jianzhong Logistic Co., Ltd. mainland China  RMB50,000,000 — 100% Provision of goods
(RERTMARBRAA) transportation services
BERERMRERAA HEl At ARE REEYER RS
50,000,0007%
Fujian Jianzhong Environmental mainland China  RMB50,000,000 — 100% Sewage treatment operations
Technology Co., Ltd.
(BRERTRENEABAA)
BRABRTREBBEERAA B At AR EUNBEE S
50,000,0007T
Guangdong Haizhijian Engineering mainland China  RMB30,000,000 — 100% Leasing of construction
Technology Co., Ltd. machinery, equipment and
(BRBZEIBMEARAR) tools and construction
material
BRE/EIRREARAR FE At ARE MERERM [ERIAK
30,000,0007T M
Fujian Hairuncheng Construction mainland China  HK$350,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and sale
Development Co., Ltd.
(BRBERERERABAA)
BEAENERZREBRAA FEI A 350,000,000 7T REBRREE
Fujian Donghuan Construction Co., mainland China  RMB108,830,000 — 100% Provision of construction
Ltd. (BRREEEZBRAF) services
BRRSERERAA Bl At AR RERERS
108,880,0007T
BRERRRARAT —B-—FF#% @
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B 3R R B =t
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxSHFTHE5N - HIAANRKTIR)
13 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RIBLATIRE (F)
(CONTINUED)
Place of
incorporation Particulars of Proportion of
Company name and business issued capital ownership interest Principal activities
AR 3L K 2#fT
NEEB 3 RA&zFHE BEERL A TEERK
Held by the  Held by a
Company  subsidiary
b MEAE
BA BA
Gansu Ganhairun Construction and mainland China  RMB30,000,000 — 100% Leasing of construction
Development Co., Ltd. machinery, equipment and
(B BERRERABRAA) tools and construction
material
HEHSHERERBRAR At AR HERERN RERIAR
30,000,0007T M
Fujian Zhongta Interconnection mainland China  RMB33,300,000 - 100% Leasing of construction
Technology Co., Ltd. machinery, equipment and
(RRARBOHNEERAR) tools and construction
material
BEEABEEHARERLR) B A3t AR MERERN  FERIAR
33,300,000 B
Notes: BT 5E -
1. The official names of the entities are in Chinese. The English 1. PN EBAEE AR EXEEHR
names are for identification purpose only. 8% o
2. All the subsidiaries in mainland China disclosed above are limited 2. Fr 7 bl 4% B8 69 B I 3t B /BB A )
liability companies. HEEREERRA -
14 INVENTORIES 14 =FE&
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBFTT
Materials ok 3,104 4,885
Consumables FEM — 10,532
Finished goods pd= 1,017 1,300
Work in progress T8 m 454 560
4,575 17,277
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Notes to the Financial Statements

R
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)
15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 15 BHREERGHNERE
LIABILITIES
(a) Contract assets @ BHEE
| 2021
0224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB’000
S i AREF T
Arising from performance under ERITEESMN
construction contracts 280,659 470,144
Receivables from contracts with B A B 1SR E 2R
customers within the scope of FISRBERN B A
HKFRS 15, which are included in [ B 5 & E e UGRIE | /)
“Trade and other receivables” REXF AL ERFIE
(Note 16) (FfF5E16) 421,276 524,645

Contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet reached
the milestones for billing at the reporting date. The
Group’s construction contracts include payment
schedules which require stage payments over the
construction period once milestones are reached. The
Group also typically agrees to a retention for 3% to 5%
of the contract value. The retention period normally
ranges from one to two years upon the completion of
work. This amount is included in contract assets until the
end of the retention period as the Group’s entitlement to
this final payment is conditional on the Group’s work
satisfactorily passing inspection.

As at 31 December 2022, the amount of contract assets
that was expected to be recovered after more than one
year were RMB173,863,000 (2021: RMB314,127,000).

Contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional.

BHEETREAKERNER
B =TERRZEIMAZEER
EENIEARKIRNKES
B AEENZESOPEREN
FEEER  EBRREEHEAE
21| 48 2 B BB 1F th B BRI A 3K o
AEET—RZANEENIBE
5%mEERT - ERMBEST
TRHRE—EMF -ARAEH
BREBNRERERTAEE
TR AIEF &AW - B
RERBERA - HEASRES
ABREE -

R2022%F12 8318 » FBEI —F 14
AREIEHNEENSEAARE
173,863,0007T (20214F = A R ¥
314,127,0007T) °

EHMENKSEGSE  GHE
EEAE S EWHIA -

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @
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MRk M et
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)
15 CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 15 EHNEERGHNAE (E)
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
(b) Contract liabilities by EHEE
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBF T
Billings in advance for construction & %)~ FaUkER X
contracts 187 2,523
Sales deposits received BEWEEES 190 599
377 3,122
Contract liabilities primarily relate to the consideration AHBETZHERER MR P YER
received from customers in advance, for which revenue MREAHE  EWRRBEBATIEMR
is recognised based on the progress of the provision of EERBREERER -
related services.
For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue B ZE2022F12A3BILFE - &
recognised in the year that was included in the contract NERFT AFEAE N B BEHD
liabilities balance at the beginning of the year was Ik 25 & A R #2,506,0007T (2021
RMB2,506,000 (2021: RMB2,780,000). F : AR¥2,780,0007T) °
16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 HEZEWKIE - HiEIRRIE
AND PREPAYMENTS RENMRIE
(@) Trade and other receivables (@ EZKHEHMEWFIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARETFIT
Trade receivables, net of loss B 5 WA
allowance (FIBR B K EEH)
— third parties —%=H 628,634 698,593
— related parties — B 352 =
Bills receivable eSS 6,627 39,302
Deposits and other receivables B K& E e RIE 29,174 43,598
664,787 781,493
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B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

16 EZEWRIER - EttEWFIR

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

(@)

Trade and other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2022, the amount of trade
receivables and deposits expected to be recovered or
recognised as expense after more than one year is
RMB369,296,000 (2021: RMB3,000,000).

As part of its normal business, the Group has entered
into certain factoring agreements with certain banks and
factoring companies. During the year ended
31 December 2022, trade receivables of RMB28,688,000
(2021: RMB254,908,000) were transferred to certain banks
or factoring companies in accordance with non-recourse
factoring agreements, and the corresponding trade
receivables were derecognised as the directors are of the
view that the substantial risks and rewards associated
with the trade receivables have been transferred and
therefore these receivables were qualified for
derecognition.

In addition, the Group also entered into certain factoring
agreements with recourse with a bank. Under these
agreements, the Group may be required to reimburse the
bank for loss of interest if any trade receivables have not
been fully paid upon due dates. The Group has retained
the substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks of the trade receivables after the transfer.
Subsequent to the transfer, the Group did not have the
rights to transfer or pledge of the trade receivables to
any other third parties. As at 31 December 2022, trade
receivables of RMB446,000 (2021: Nil) were factored to
the bank with recourse and were not derecognised. The
associated liabilities with the same amount were also
recognised as bank loans (Note 21(a)(V)).

As at 31 December 2022, outstanding commercial
acceptance bills of RMB280,000 (2021: Nil) were
discounted to banks with recourse and were not
derecognised. The associated liabilities with the same
amount were included in bank loans (Note 21(a)(vi)).

As at 31 December 2022, outstanding commercial
acceptance bills of RMB1,160,000 (2021: RMB480,000)
were endorsed to certain suppliers with recourse and the
Group continued to recognise the corresponding
receivables. The associated liabilities with the same
amount were included in trade and other payables (Note
20).

R¥EAFE (&)

(@)

BEZRHEAMEWRREE)
72022612 A318 - TEE R 4B
B FRKERERRFANE
FREFERRESE/ARE
369,296,0007T (20214F = A R #
3,000,0007T) ©

ERAEENEREZBH &
o AKEERETRITRRE
RAFLETREHH -BHE
2026 12H3NBIEFE - @8 A
A R #28,688,0007T (20214 : A
R #254,908,0007T) #) B 5 F& Ik
FERBEEREREHEE S
TETRITHFRERT - BHEE
B RYGKAR LR ARE
EMRAR/EE S EWFIRE[N
BEXRREDHRDEER A&
FREFIAN AR ILFERNER -

BEON - REBE IR EIRITEI LB T
MBERENREWZ - BREZE
ek - WERE S EBRERR
BB BB AEETREAE
MIRTTEEFNBEBL - AEEE
REBBRIASREREE®R  BF
EREEFRINKIBRELDR
b o REBEZEE ASEEREKE
5 WG IBEE FE S T ERH
5 =7 - PA2022512A318 -
H 5 e RIE AR ®446,0007T
(20214 : &) E M B RERRTT
RE--BARKRILER - BERS
ERHABEGEIERBEITER
(B sE21(0)(V)) °

R2022F12A31H » REEEm %
A E R A R #280,0007T (2021
F o E) B BREMIE TIRIT
BREZE®ER - RS ENE
BEEEF ARITER (HFFE21()
(vi)) °

M202212 4310 - REEM %
FEARE1,160,0007T (20214 -
A R ¥480,0007T) B Hf 18 R # A
ETHEBSE  BXASEER
ERBEENLRE EHRAESE
MIAAREFAE S REMEN
R (FfFE20) »

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

16 TRADE RECEIVABLES, OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 EZEWRIAE - HittEWFIE

AND PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED) RENRE(E)
(@) Trade and other receivables (Continued) (@ EZRHEMEKFIE(E)
Ageing analysis AR 2 A7
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis R¥REBIR - 1= E R E 8
of trade and bills receivables (which are included in trade EERAEBYBEWNREBLRE
and other receivables), based on date of progress B E 5 EBGIE R EWER (5
certificates or date of issuance of bills and net of loss ANE 5 R H A EWGRIE) MERE D
allowance, is as follows: AT
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARETT
Within 1 month & A A 40,313 102,576
More than 1 month but within 123@ A
3 months 63,444 127,496
More than 3 months but within 3Z6fE A
6 months 77,098 152,895
More than é months but within 621218 A
12 months 129,976 118,601
More than 12 months BiE1218 A 324,782 236,327
635,613 737,895
According to the payment terms in contracts, the Group BREENHNINER  N&EBE
is entitled to request for progress payments that are BERITMEER  BEL2EL
usually measured by reference to a prescribed ZEETIIRSENEER D
percentage of the certified amount of work completed. LLErE - BEAEENEERR
Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit LB SRERRREEENEERR
risk arising from trade receivables are set out in Note ZHE— B BENKE27@)
27(a).
(b) Prepayments (b) FEAFFIH
Prepayments mainly represent prepaid amounts for ENFEETEAMBENEEK
materials and labour subcontracting fee. BEnBE -
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17 RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION

ARRANGEMENT

In January 2018, the Group entered into a service agreement to
provide sewage treatment service in Changle District. Details of
the Group’s service concession arrangement for providing
sewage treatment service are listed below:

Term of concession rights
5 3 HARR

Rights to use specific assets

EREEEENEN
Pricing
k]

Minimum sewage treatment
volume guaranteed
REHEFKEEE

Responsibilities

Term of termination
K IEERMR

Obligations to deliver
specified assets at the end
of the concession period

RETEARINEEEE
WEE

Term of renewal
E SN

Notes to the Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

17 %ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁﬁ?%@%ﬁ
I/

R201841 7 » AEEEN ELE G
kIR RIS ST R - BEAR
B4R 6455 /K SR T B 75 60 PRI 5 S IR B
BSEE T

Till 30 April 2030
HZE2030%4H30H

All relevant sewage treatment infrastructure
FT B #8785 /K Be I 3% bt

Initial sewage treatment unit tariff price is set out in the relevant service
agreement. Non-routine review of sewage treatment unit tariff price is
conducted upon change in production costs or additional capital expenditure
incurred due to compliance with new environmental requirements

VKRB ESYEEBH NIRRT HE - SKEEEEBRIEFTREHNEE
ARSI HRNEBENRRERMEEBINERALEETT

40,000 tonnes per day
£ X40,000M8

During the concession period, the Group shall:
REFFTREEAR - ANEEA -

o Maintain the sewage treatment facilities and operation of sewage treatment
] SRR IR AR M R A 5 KR

o Monitor water quality
. EsfEKE

o Disclose to the public the relevant tap water supply parameters, including
quality, supply pressure and other service measures
] MAREE S RKHENEBLE - 2EKE KEREMWREER

Upon expiry of the concession period
FAPE A fE W 12

At the end of the concession period, the Group is obliged to deliver all the
relevant sewage treatment infrastructure to the Grantor at nil consideration

REFFFESR  AEEARERIR T I XA RBSKEEERRE

Not determined

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)

17 RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 17 BRB4SF#EZHE T EWRE

ARRANGEMENT (CONTINUED) 15 (#&)
The Group's receivables under service concession arrangement REERRFETELEEIE N F KRI5K
in respect of sewage treatment service concession Be P AR 5 E A 2 Bk Y FE WGRIB 3R 1 4
arrangement are as follows: T @
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETTT
Non-current portion SERNERED 21,842 25,407
Current portion BN EAEE 5 9,279 7,410
31,121 32,817
Expected collection schedule is as BAEFWEEBEROT
follows:
Within 1 year 1R 9,279 7,410
After 1 year but within 5 years 1854 13,976 14,164
After 5 years but within 10 years 5E104F 7,866 11,243
31,121 32,817
The effective interest rate for the above financial assets was Ll mEENEBRFERNER3.85% o
3.85% per annum.
18 RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 18 ZMRFIRITAEER
2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Pledged deposits [REEEEEEEN 19,352 52,197
As at 31 December 2022, these deposits were mainly pledged M2022F 128310 - ZEGFEREEEK
to banks as security for bank loans and other borrowings, BT RITIERBITER R EMBER - 5F
litigation and bills payable (Note 20). AR ENZERER (HI5E20) ©
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19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER

Notes to the Financial Statements

B RS ER AR MY

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)

CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@)

19

B
325
AL

ERASEEYRAEMREE

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: @ RERREFEVERE:
| 2021

022 9 20214

B’000 RMB'000

R ARBTIT

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFHERS 149,817 92,973

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

At 31 December 2022, cash and deposits that were
placed with banks in the mainland China amounted to
RMB134,963,000 (2021: RMB92,850,000). Remittance of
funds out of mainland China is subject to the relevant
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

RITRSBEE A RITERA X
BHAFE BN AL - |17
RBREHINEERFAOHER
HIRCERAYERTT ©

20226124318 - TR H
NIRITHRERTFRARARK
134,963,0007T (20214 : AR ¥
92,850,0007T) ° ¢ Hr B A 3h BEE 1
TXIR 7R ST P B AT 28 A B S EE
EHARANERD -

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 BE&RBESZEYREMRE

CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) nEER (&)
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) BAFEEKEMSREZ
generated from operations: iR :
2022 2021
2022 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T ARET T
Operating activities S —Pr )
Loss before taxation T Al E 18 (224,310) (117,970)
Adjustments for: BT R IEEE
Depreciation of property, plant  BEW - BE X
and equipment owned and HEAREAEER
right-of-use assets EfE 5(c) 71,807 89,339
Amortisation iy 5(c) 988 981
Gain on disposal of property, BEWHE BE X
plant and equipment B0 En 4 (30,875) (40,555)
Impairment loss on property, Y BE K&
plant and equipment BB &R 5(c) 93,436 =
Impairment loss on trade and H 5 N HE b fE W SR IE
other receivables and AR &K EERE
contract assets &1 5(c) 69,954 138,344
Finance costs A& B AN 5(a) 24,853 34,898
Changes in working capital: BEESEH
Decrease in inventories FERD 12,702 10,991
Decrease in contract assets BREERD 182,664 53,912
Decrease in trade and other H 5 N E b fE W SR IE
receivables Vo 65,904 55,647
Decrease in receivables under  IRFSEFFRELHEIE T
service concession B FE UK SR IE R, A
arrangement 1,696 2,832
Decrease/(increase) in Z MR HIRIT A AR
restricted bank balances wA (3 ) 32,845 (35,155)
(Decrease)/increase in trade H 5 N E b AT 5RIE
and other payables R A4>) /18 (87,173) 92,980
Decrease in contract liabilities EHNEERD (2,745) (2,598)
Cash generated from operations L& FT5IR & 211,746 283,646
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19 BRERRESZEYREMRE
2= B X&) =]
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED) nEER (&)
(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (0 METBHFREEANEEZY
financing activities i
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TR AKEREEZEBNES
from financing activities, including both cash and WEBE ZE (BERE LIRS
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing BE))FHBE - MEBERBEZREN
activities are liabilities for which cash flows were, or EELEIARBEREBER AN
future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's SENGERERERTOERS
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from BMEEBMELENRERE - B
financing activities. ZBEEEERERDHEENARS -
Ob 0
P 0 0
D 04 0 0 d
and 0 quip b a B
DOIro pa D 0 D 0
HA
AN g f ERHEEBR 7
I;II B'000 R lll] B'000 B'000 B'000 RMB’000
ote 0 0 (s 0 0& 0 b
Mz 0 iz 0K f b
At 1 January 2022 202251518 291,708 3,974 36551,664 77777777 1 50,435 777777777 1 8,174516,340
Changes from financing cash flows: BERSREFRNED:
Proceeds from new bank loans and HRTERREMER
other borrowings P 126,627 — - - - - 126,627
Repayment of bank loans and other BEBTERREMER
borrowings (212,036) - - - - - (212,036)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BRRERENERES - - (355) - - - (355)
Payment for acquisition of equipment by~ WA EAZEAREN
instalments i35k - - - (48,783) - - (48,783)
Payments for capital element of ERTRERFELNES
obligations arising from sale and HEXBAIH
leaseback transactions — — - - (54,477) — (54,477)
Interests paid BRFE - (28,541) - - - — (28,541)
Total changes from financing cash flows REREREHRNE
At (85,409) (28,541) 55 ( 48,733) 77777777 (54,477) 7777777777777 - ( 217,563)
Other changes: Li LR
Increase in lease liabilities from entering ML HBLE £
into new leases during the year MEEEEM
(Note 10(i) (izE10() - - 402 - - - 402
Acquisition of equipment by instalments X E RS E6 5 8
which have non-cash effects BEL VST - — - 3,044 - — 3,044
Acquisition of equipment from sale and KBRS F EMER
leaseback transactions which have MER 5 AZE
non-cash effects — — — — 4,859 — 4,859
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) FlE X (Hz50) - 24,853 - - - — 24,853
Settled by bills payable which have non-  JARFEREHEHERE
cash effects BEE - - - 16,280 4,096 (18,174) 2,202
Transfer from trade payables under NEFR Y ENERE
refinancing arrangement which have ZHETHESEN
non-cash effects HEER 6,169 - - - - - 6,169
Total other changes Hip@oast 6,169 483 42 1934 8955 8174 41,529
At 31 December 2022 R20224£12A318 212,468 286 412 22,205 104,933 - 340,304

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

BeRReESEYRHMLRSE
REEHR (&)
() MEFHMEENEEZY

19

financing activities (Continued) i (&)
Obligations
Payables for arising from
Bank loans acquisition of sale and
and other Interest Lease equipment by  leaseback Bills
borrowings payable liabilities instalments  transactions payable Total
DoBMH  EEER
BABTK BAZEN  RIEE
Hitfem  EAFE HEAR R 5E MEB  ERARE Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARET:R
(Note 21(a)) (Note 20) (Note 22)  (Notes 20&25)  (Note 21(b))
(B&E21a)  (H#20)  (HigE22) (FEEE20%25)  (Fiw21(b)
At 1 January 2021 R2021F181A8 335,351 2,129 1,143 69,975 50,000 — 458,598
Changes from financing cash flows: BEREHEHRNSH
Proceeds from bank loans BABRAEE 144,055 = = = = = 144,055
Repayment of bank loans EEHTER (187,698) = = = = = (187,698)
Capital element of lease rentals BENEEHENER
paid BH — — (1,269) — — = (1,269)
Payment for acquisition of A BR SRR A\ SR 0
equipment by instalments (E = = = (24,355) = = (24,355)
Payments for capital element of ~ ERBEERFELMN
obligations arising from sale and BENERTLD
leaseback transactions OE — — — — (26,459) = (26,459)
Interests paid BAHE — (33,053) = = = = (33,053)
Total changes from financing cash  BEBREHEEKL
flows EEE (43,643) (33,053) (1,269) (24,355) (26,459) - (128,779)
Other changes: Hith g :
Increase in lease liabilities from FREHBHEERN
entering into new leases during HEABEM
the year (Note 10(i) (FHEE1000) = = 91 = = — 491
Acquisition of equipment by NEFRSFENHH
instalments which have NREARE
non-cash effects = = — 24,218 126,726 = 150,944
Interest expenses (Note 5(a)) F 8 (FiEs(@) — 34,898 — — — — 34,898
Settled by bills payable which have M E3FR 4 ¥ EME N
non-cash effects SEEE — — — (18,174) - 18,174 =
Others Hith — — = = 188 = 188
Total other changes HthZ8ast = 34,898 491 6,044 126,914 18,174 186,521
At 31 December 2021 R2021%128318 291,708 3,974 365 51,664 150,455 18,174 516,340
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K RBFTHESN -

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND OTHER 19
CASH FLOW INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(d) Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases

comprise the following:

B RS ER AR MY

BIAANRESIR)

BekAeSEYRAEMRE

REES (&)

d HERSREAHE
SARSREROEE S EEX

mE -

Within operating cash flows
Within financing cash flows

REReRE
BERETRE

A
A

(27,985)
(387)

2021
20214
RMB'000
ARETT

(37,683)
(1,276)

(28,372)

(38,959)

These amounts all relate to lease rentals paid.

ZECRHEINES AR -

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20 BEZRHMEMNFIE
0 2021
0 20214
B’000 RMB'000
R AR®ET T
Trade payables =Y e
— third parties —=HE=% 293,674 392,770
— related parties — B H 339 339
Bills payable AN 43,979 114,609
Suppliers of property, plant and Y BB RRERER
equipment 32,698 50,215
Value added tax and surcharges FEAT BB R R B hn &
payables 107,686 87,233
Other payables and accruals H b B < 5RIB K FE FT 3R B 69,286 67,028
Obligation for bills endorsed with BERENEEREBEE
recourse 1,160 480
Interest payable eI 286 3,974
549,108 716,648

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all the other trade and
other payables are expected to be settled within one year or

are repayable on demand.

20224 [k 2021%12H318 - T B H
'8 5 K E A N FORTR BN — F A4

BHIRBERAT -

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @
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20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED) 20
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade and bills payable (which are included in trade and other
payables), based on the invoice date/transaction date, is as

BEZREMENKEA)

RBEHRR - BE

ERH/ %5 AEHE

THESENRARENREGIAE
5 R EM N RIR) WRE DTN T

follows:
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETF T
Within 1 month & A A 33,760 60,821
More than 1 month but within 3 months 1ZE31& A 40,679 115,968
More than 3 months but within 6 months 3% 61 A 59,523 135,951
More than 6 months but within 6= 1218 A
12 months 53,828 87,437
More than 12 months BiE1218 A 150,202 107,541
337,992 507,718
21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS 21 BERRER
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR®T ARBFTT
Non-current 3k BP H#A
Bank loans and other borrowings RITER R EMER
— secured — BER (@) 49,013 84,610
Obligations arising from sale and ERERRFEENRT
leaseback transactions (b) 54,233 101,084
R 103246 | 185,694
Current BD &R
Bank loans and other borrowings RITERREMER
— secured — BER (a) 163,455 207,098
Obligations arising from sale and ERENZZGEENET
lease back transactions (b) 50,700 49,371
R 214155 | 256,469
Total s 317,401 442,163
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B R&FTFEIN -

LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)
Bank loans and other borrowings
Bank loans and other borrowings were repayable as

(@)

Notes to the Financial Statements

21

B RS ER AR MY

BIAANRESIR)

ERRER (&)

(@)

RITERREMER
RITE R R E A B FOE KL B0

follows: TATR -

| 2021
0224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
= ARBFTT
Less than 1 year —F A 163,455 207,098
1 to 2 years —EWFE 37,809 40,896
2 to 5 years M2 R F 11,204 43,714
212,468 291,708

() As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of ()  P2022%12R318  RITERA

(i)

(iif)

RMB28,281,000 (2021: RMB25,270,000) were
secured by properties of a third party and also
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the
company.

As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of
RMB51,076,000 (2021: RMB75,738,000) were
secured by machinery and equipment of the Group
(Note 10(iii)).

In June 2021, Jianzhong Construction Technology
entered into a credit line agreement with a
financial institute to purchase certain equipment on
instalment, pursuant to which Jianzhong
Construction Technology was granted credit
amount up to RMB50,000,000 with maturity in May
2022. In June 2022, the credit line was expired and
Jianzhong Construction Technology entered into a
new credit line agreement with the financial
institute, pursuant to which, a credit line with a
term of two years with the amount up to
RMB60,000,000 was granted. Such credit line was
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the
Company. As at 31 December 2022, the Company
had the borrowing of RMB35,185,000 and unutilised
credit amount of RMB24,815,000 (Note 10(iii)).

(i)

(iif)

2 #28,281,0007T (20214 : AR
#25,270,0007T) A— B E =7 1)
YRR TR A R BB
REHER -

MR2022%F12 8318 - SBITE R A
R #51,076,0007T (20214F : AR
#75,738,0007T ) JA 7 5 [ ) 44
KB VE BRI (FIEE10GI)) °

R2021F6 A » B ERRHTE—
REMBERLIREHEADH
NRAFABES TRE Bt
BEFEIREERESBARE
50,000,000 TR EAER8E + 722022
F58 FH - 2022668 - B1iE
FHEIH ZhEsiisEmesm
WREETLHBE0mE Bt &
R&m A AR 60,000,0007T & H
MENEEREE BEEEEE
ARG FREER - R
2022912 318 » AR R MER
A AR #35,185,0007C © ABAK
58 & AR #24,815,0007T (Hf
FE10(ii) °

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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21 LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21

(@) Bank loans and other borrowings (Continued)

(v) As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of
RMB97,200,000 (2021: RMB100,000,000) were
guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the
company.

(v)  As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMB446,000
(2021: Nil) were secured by trade receivables of
RMB446,000 (2021: Nil) as set out in Note 16(a).

(vi)  As at 31 December 2022, bank loans of RMB280,000
(2021: Nil) were related to the outstanding
commercial acceptance bills discounted to banks
with recourse as set out in Note 16(a).

(b) Obligations arising from sale and leaseback
transactions
Obligations arising from sale and leaseback transactions
were repayable as below:

BERRER(E)

(@)

(b)

RITERREMERE)

(v) 720224128318 - #1T
B 3 A R #97,200,0007
(20215 : AR
100,000,0007T) B A8 2 42
BB SRR PR AR -

(v) 20224128318 ' B 1T
ERAREA46,0007T (2021
F|E)NE S EUGRIEA
R #446,0007T (20214 :
) e BT (FisE16@)) °

(vi)  M2022412H318 @ #1717
B AR 280,0007T (2021
FoE)AMEREMRRT
RITHREEREALER
B (H5E16(@) °

EREERZELENRK

ERBEERZEENREEER
RHWT

2022 2021
20224 20214F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Less than 1 year —F R 55,038 56,066
1to 2 years —ZEMF 35,599 53,650
2 to 3 years ME=%F 21,138 53,908
Total undiscounted obligations REGRERBERRZEEN
arising from sale and leaseback et
transactions 111,775 163,624
Less: Total future interest expenses J& : 7 2R F| B 5 = 4258 (6,842) (13,169)
Obligations arising from sale and ST AGZEMBRRRNER
leaseback transactions included HAERXRZEENZRK
in the consolidated statements of
financial position 104,933 150,455
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)
LOANS AND BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 21

Obligations arising from sale and leaseback
transactions (Continued)

Maturity analysis — present value of obligations arising
from sale and leaseback transactions

B R AR ()
b E#BEEIEEOED
IlE

Mo — ERERXRZELEN
EXNRE

| 2021

022 4 20214

RMB’000 RMB'000

= ARBFIT

Less than 1 year —F R 50,700 49,371

1 to 2 years —EWF 33,561 49,484

2 to 3 years ME=%F 20,672 51,600
Present value of obligations arising ERBELORHIEENER

from sale and leaseback # IR 1E
transactions 104,933 150,455

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all obligations arising
from sale and leaseback transactions were secured by
underlying assets with carrying values of RMB127,527,000
(2021: RMB196,649,000) as mentioned in Note 10(ii), and
were guaranteed by the controlling shareholder of the
Group.

R20224F 2021128318 » B
BERHARRSELENEFIUR
mEHZARK127,527,0007T
(20214 + AR #196,649,0007T)
WA EEEAEKR (KT
10(ii) Prat) Kz R AN & B 12 AR AR R
REPELR -

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @

<



Notes to the Financial Statements

b E e
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22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HE&GE
Maturity analysis — contractual undiscounted cash FBASH — RUERENRER
flows
| 2021
022 1 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
R ARET T
Less than 1 year —F A 227 99
1to 2 years —EMF 208 79
2 to 5 years MZERF — 252
Total undiscounted lease liabilities REWREEABERES 435 430
Less: Total future interest expenses B RRFE A R (23) (65)
Lease liabilities included in the SFAGABBERARNEE
consolidated statements of financial aE
position 412 365
Maturity analysis — present value of lease LN — HEABENRE
liabilities
| 2021
022 1 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
R M ARET T
Less than 1 year —F A 209 88
1to 2 years —EMF 203 74
2 to 5 years MZERF — 203
Present value of lease liabilities HEBEGEHIREAE 412 365
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (K RBFTHESN -

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Defined contribution retirement plan

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal government authorities
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to the
Schemes based on a percentage of the participating
employee’s salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits associated with the Schemes beyond the
contributions described above.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement
of financial position represents:

Notes to the Financial Statements

23

24

B RS R MY R
BUARKEFIR)

EERKEAR

E B G ROGR IR 5T 8

RIER RIS TRAIRAR  AEE
Hh B B 2 72 B ol o B T BT
90 48 44 11 2 455 SR IR AR FU BT B (T3t
2))  BUAEEARESRESTE
H)— S 53 LR B B < 0T AT
BERETRAERSHRAS 2 KA

AR -

BR £l RSN - AN SR AR A At B )
BRENBERNERRERHSES -

REMBRRRANAEHR

@@ B BN KA BB
HiE

PRC corporate income tax payable

FER B EREH

| 2021

022 5 20214
B’000 RMB'000
S AREF T
9,356 8,928
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24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 HEMBRRRANRAED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (%&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised: by ERAPEEHREEERE
& :
(i) Movement of each component of deferred tax assets () EZHBREEREENZME
and liabilities RSB Y B
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) RERE B IR R W R
recognised in the consolidated statement of REBIEEE (8F) 48
financial position and the movements during the 38 3 PA K A 9 B B A
year are as follows: g
prop
( 0 0 0 D (
Deferred tax arising from: allowance 0 Depreciatio equipme Othe ota
= ir B ]
BEBERE 15 2 S 2 E nedEEE H Ay o
RMB’000 B’000 RMB’000 B’000 RMB’000 B’000
At 1 January 2021 R202151 818 25,136 3789 (30,818) - 451 (1,442)
Credited/(charged) to REHERFA/
profit or loss (108%) 22,525 (4,100) 6,728 = 8,084 33,237
At 31 December 2021 and 12021124318
1 January 2022 R20225
1818 47,661 311) (24,090) — 8,535 31,795
Credited/(charged) to RBEHAEA/
profit or loss (408%) 2,018 311 4,082 2,578 (68) 8,921
At 31 December 2022 20224612318 49,679 — (20,008) 2,578 8,467 40,716
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised

In accordance with Note 1(q), the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative
tax losses of RMB29,034,000 (2021: RMB394,000) as it is
not probable that future taxable profits against which the
losses can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses expire within five
years under current tax legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised

At 31 December 2022, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the Group’s certain
subsidiaries in mainland China amounted to
RMB88,674,000 (2021: RMB298,740,000). Deferred tax
liabilities were not recognised in respect of the
withholding tax that would be payable on the distribution
of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries in mainland China
and the directors have determined that these profits are
not likely to be distributed in the foreseeable future.

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Other non-current liabilities represent the non-current portion
of payables for acquisition of equipment by instalments. For
the year ended 31 December 2022, the effective interest rate
of the payables is 5.3%-6.0% (2021: 5.3%—6.0%).

24

25

2 B B R0 R o 9 8 B

(&

() RERELEHEBEEE

RIEMTEEQ) » AEBE W ESE 25T
i B B B A R ¥29,034,0007T
(20214F © AR#394,0007T) #ERR
FERBEE  AABBHB
FEERNEEBTAESAA
R B B E 18 A R 2R FE B R
B REBRITH LA MEEBER
REFRENE -

d REREZEHEES
M2022F12A31H - A EE
RAPBERHETHBRARNRD
EMENEREEZmEAARE
88,674,0007T (20214 : A R #&
298,740,0007T) ° WL D IKZE
1R B8 1) 8 B S A 1 TB A0 F7 1 i °R
BEIEFIAAGE  AARNAD G ZEG
ZEPBE A HE QA AR SR
K BEZEREZEMNBETK
ATRER AT B AR R DK ©

HikEREBEE
HiIERnBBBEADBHRBEAR
MENFIERIEREIZ 5 o B 20224
128318 ILEE - BAFENEEREFR
535.3%%6.0% (20214F : 5.3% % 6.0%) °

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26 EXR - REERRE

(@ Movements in components of equity (@ HERILEH

The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEFE ERSIEN Y K& E
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated REARBRET NGRS
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of K oMFEVEFAREMB AR A
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Ax#E E B I8 B B & B FF 15 #5140
Company'’s individual components of equity between the T~

beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

Share Share Exchange  Accumulated

Company capital premium reserve losses Total
ANE L8 R EE B e E 7] &t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBT T ARBT T AR® TR ARBT T

Balance as at 1 January 2021 R2021F1 A1 B &8k 5,671 204,914 (16,575) (5,434) 188,576

Changes in equity for 2021: R2021FNEEED

Loss for the year FABE — — — (3,148) (3,148)
Dividends approved in respect of FEEEHERE

the previous year — (10,817) — — (10,817)
Otner comprenensive income A 2@dew | - = O3 T (5374
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A310 5,671 194,097 (21,949) (8,582) 169,237

Changes in equity for 2022: R2025HERED

Loss for the year FNER — — — (3,355) (3,355)
Other comprehensive income Hip2mdizs — — 16,208 — 16,208
At 31 December 2022 R20226128318 5,671 194,097 (5,741) (11,937) 182,090
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26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 26
(CONTINUED)

Dividends

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous financial year, approved and
paid during the year:

B RERKRE (E)

(b) KRE
RERAE RN E—RKF
ERNARBERRRABE

| 2021

022 5 20214
B’000 RMB’000

FS AR®ET T

No final dividend in respect of the &AW &R F—BBRFE
previous financial year, approved  #tfE &R R HIRE B
and paid during the year (2021: (20214F : =R%2.087%8L)
HK2.08 cents per share)

— 10,817

No dividend was declared for the year ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

# ZE 20224 K2021%12 8318 1k
FE - BETRTMAES -

Share capital () BA
Issued share capital EBITRE
Number of
Issued and fully paid: shares Ordinary shares
BERITRERE R4 BB HEBER
‘000 HK$'000 RMB'000
T TBTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2021, R2021F1 /818 -
31 December 2021 and 202112 A31 8 &
31 December 2022 2022512 H31H 625,000 6,250 5,671

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company is distributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the dividend is
proposed to be distributed, the Company would be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

d) KR#H=E
REREFESRFE  ARFIKR
0 (B R AT ) kAR B F AR A
BERR ARRASEEERDIK
REEBE® ARAHEARE
RETEEBEREFNBHEH
7% e

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBHEFTHESN © HIUAREFR)

26 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(CONTINUED)

(e)

@ JIANZHONG CONSTRUCTION DEVELOPMENT LIMITED

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio.

For this purpose, net debt is defined as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, lease
liabilities and payables for acquisition of equipment by
instalments) less cash and cash equivalents.

26

B RERKRE (F)

(e)

EXREHE
AEEEAREENETEZRERR
BASENSELERN BB
A N IR TS BB E BRI AR R Y
BRLASEXNANESRE - #
REBRBRREEDE  BEM
MR ARREE BIE M af

AEEERERRASLEEREER
KRB ERREFKFAIES
KOESBEREDHREZRZOEAR
RS BE TS R Y 2 BR AR B 2 R 4E
BYE YREBEERRNE(L
BEARBELHAE -

AEBRBEARFREELNL

Bt FRAEAERBEEATR(E
EAHRERRER HEABMN
KA R A SR8 A\ B B FE 5 3K
R)BREEREFEY -

| 2021

0224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

S A AREET T

Loans and borrowings BERRER 317,401 442,163

Lease liabilities HEAE 412 365
Payables for acquisition of equipment LA HAfS 2k g A RR & B9

by instalments FETFRIB 22,205 51,664

Sub-total NEF 340,018 494,192

Less: Cash and cash equivalents W REeRREEEBY (149,817) (92,973)

Net debt FAE 190,201 401,219

Equity B 771,974 988,510

Net debt-to-capital ratio FREEEARL R 24.6% 40.6%
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest and currency risks arises
in the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial risk management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, bills receivable, contract assets and
receivables under service concession arrangement.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group has established a credit risk management
policy under which individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s history of making payments and current
ability to pay, and take into account information specific
to the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Based on
the evaluation, customers are categorised into different
groups based on their risk characteristic. When analysed
the credit risk arisen, the Group also considered the
credit terms granted to customers. The Group is entitled
to request for progress payments that are usually
measured by reference to a prescribed percentage of the
certified amount of work completed according to the
payment terms in the contracts. However, in practice, it
normally takes months to complete the settlement of
trade receivables due to the administrative process of
different customers. Therefore, the Group generally
grants an extended payment period based on the
background of its customers — for stated-owned
enterprises, 6 months from the issuance of progress
certificates; for private entities, 3 months from the
issuance of progress certificates. Accordingly, the Group
categorised trade receivables into three time bands in
accordance with the ageing report, i.e. “trade receivables
within the extended payment period”, “trade receivables
exceeding the extended payment period by less than 1
year” and “trade receivables exceeding the extended
payment period by more than 1 year”. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

27

HHAREERSBIANA
¥

AEBEREKBEREPEELEESE R
Bt MEREERR - AEE @R
ZERARARAEBRARNEEZFAR
MM SRR EERR M ERETINT

(@) EERE
AEENEERREERBEE S
FEIGRIE EWEE  EHEE
MRS R AT A L BETE T A9 B U 3R
H- BEEEEHNEEERSE I
ERFEEELSEERR -

AEBERIGEERREER
BBl FTAEEFPHAELETHE
AEERE - WEFERAERE
BE R 2 & & Al s BE

TEEREFHBEEMRERR
EGHREEEREEHENEN -
ERFHE - EPREERERS R
DERTRMAR - ROMEE
MEERRE KNEEITFEER
TEPHNEEMR - REAHQHN
MG - AREEBRE R
EER BE2ELEZBETT
TREHENFEADLLFTE R
m-EBRLE ARTRAEFHIT
BARFF - SERE 5 R WGRIA R 45
EREFEHA At XK HE
—REREFEFPHNESREER
MHRMERE — BB LEmME -8
FAHRSEEEZAREZ BES
@A RALAEERMES @ MSEE
EERZEZBEIMEA - At
AEEREREREKE D RIK
IS A= AR - BN R IEH
HHRBARANE 5 EUKFKIA]
[BREHRNTARTRIFNE
2 FE MR | K [ 78 38 1 R 5 50 B
RIFALEWE HRKFIEA] - A
SEBE TSN EF RERFEMN

)
oR °
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 BEAREEREMIANAD
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F1E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) (@ EERE(E)

The Group’s customers are concentrated in real estate
companies or main contractors in mainland China. At the
end of the reporting period, 18.1% (2021: 17.7%), 50.6%
(2021: 51.6%) and 71.3% (2021: 77.9%) of the total trade
receivables and contract assets was due from the
Group's largest customer, the second largest customer
and the five largest customers respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables, bills receivable and contract assets at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using
a provision matrix. As the Group's historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases. The Group has
considered that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the loss
rate for the contract assets.

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade

REBEME P ST A
EHEATXAEABE NME
HAZK - 18.1% (20214 : 17.7%) -
50.6% (20214 : 51.6%) % 71.3%
(20214F : 77.9%) K9 & 5 FE W 3k I8
BRBRAHNEEDRREAEE
BABEF F_ABFMAEARE
)5 °

AEBREANFEDREYREER
BANETHETEE SRR
BRUZEREHNEENEBKRE
B CABREBRETE - BRA
SENELEERRERI AR
ATRATFENEBEEATER
EER AKETREPENIE
REBRIEE—FED - AEHE
RREHREFANFARIBR R
RAEHNEERKRENAIEIMUE -

TREHIAEEE 5 RUWFIA
RUREBERANEENEERR

receivables, bills receivable and contract assets: RIEEAEEIBRER -
2022
20224
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
FEHIE R E IREAE BREE FREE
% RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT AR%®TR AR%®Txn
Current (not past due) BDEA (K#HA) 11.5 324,692 (37,406) 287,286
Less than 12 months  #E3 L A 121@ B
past due 17.9 370,706 (66,501) 304,205
More than 12 months i 8@ 1218 A
past due 26.8 443,690 (118,909) 324,781
1,139,088 (222,816) 916,272
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27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 BEREEREMIANA

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 18 (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) @ EERMK(E)
2021
20214F
Gross
Expected carrying Loss Carrying
loss rate amount allowance amount
FEHpIE AL K BRMEAAE BRERE AREE

% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

% ARETTT ARETT ARBTT

Current (not past due) BNHA (FR#EH) 11.5
Less than 12 months @ EHEF L1218 A

past due 11.8
More than 12 months @ EHEf B @ 1218 A

past due 28.0

569,843 (65,658) 504,185
518,736 (61,029) 457,707
324,785 (90,973) 233,812

1,413,364 (217,660) 1,195,704

In addition to above provision matrix, the Group has
made individual loss allowance for certain trade and
other receivables. As at 31 December 2022, the
accumulated individual loss allowance was
RMB149,137,000 (2021: RMB84,339,000) with the carrying
amounts before loss allowance of RMB149,137,000 (2021:
RMB96,674,000).

Expected loss rates are based on historical credit loss
experience over the past years. These rates are adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the trade receivables, bills
receivable and contract assets.

For receivables under service concession arrangement,
as the receivables are mainly due from an entity
designated by local government with no history of
default, the Group considered the loss allowances for
receivables under service concession arrangement to be
immaterial.

Br Fui B SN AEBE
ETESREMEKZKEFIRE
A 18 K A - 722022412 A 31
B REfERBLREHEBARK
149,137,0007T (20214 : A R ¥
84,339,0007T) - B 18 2 % A AR
mEAAR149,137,0007T
(20214 : AR#¥96,674,0007T) °

BHBAXRBEBEFREESLE
BEEAKRIE ZELXRE
BEBANTERE - EAHiKR R
AEEEE HRKFIR - BIE
BRANBEERAFESANKE
RN BEELTE -

AR TS 5T 22 PR IR T B FE WK
HME  BRERKEEERAE
B BT 46 T B — [ 30 B B AR
BHNER AKRERRRBE
R HRIR T B B WA R IR AV 1R
REBLTEK -

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN - HUAREFR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 BIBEREEREMIAND
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F1E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(@) Credit risk (Continued) @ EERMK(E)
Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of B REMBBWRFKIEUAREGEHE
trade and other receivables and contract assets during EEREFERENFEANRNF
the year is as follows: BRAT :
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBF T
Balance at 1 January R1A 1B & 301,999 163,765
Amounts written off during the year 4 Rl i 58 — (110)
Impairment losses recognised FRERRBEEE
during the year 69,954 138,344
Balance at 31 December A2 A31 B W 564 371,953 301,999
(b) Liquidity risk (b) FE)ME R
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity REBBKREATHEZER
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, BB R REERERNETIE
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and N ERERTENESHEER
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial AARSRERER THAGRE
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short HE  UmERHARKANRE
and longer term. BoFHK o
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BrBABFTIEIN - HUAAREEFIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 H¥EBREEREMIAEND
A= —d
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS F1{E (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FHENEREBE ()
The following tables show the remaining contractual TERBDERKRMBEEHRESRE
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the ARAEE AR ZRERN R
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on F AR RSB R @SR
contractual undiscounted cash flows and the earliest WEEE BN T &S :
date the Group can be required to pay:
0 2021
0 20214
0 discounted outflo Contractual undiscounted cash outflow _
VLY KUEBADELR CEIig
0 0 amount on
0 ore onsolidated More than More than consolidated
0 Within 1 year 2 years statements of
0 b a 1 year or but less but less financial
on de 0 positio on demand  than 2 years than 5 years Total position
A8 AN
N i A 1EARR 1EAE 2EM F KREAZ
5 A A A Ll REREER 26 R SELA Ehl BEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R R K R R ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTR
Trade payables B ENHE 294,013 — - 294,013 294,013 393,109 — — 393,109 393,109
Bills payable ANES 43,979 — - 43,979 43,979 114,609 — — 114,609 114,609
Suppliers of property, plant and ~ #1% « BiE k&8
equipment HER 33,610 4,522 2,389 40,521 39,201 149,752 15,575 8,398 73,725 69,533
Other payables and accruals H A JE A A R JES
HE 61,516 - - 61,516 61,516 62,393 — — 62,393 62,393
Interest payable FERFIS 286 — - 286 286 3974 — — 3974 3974
Obligation for bills endorsed with BBREMNEEER
recourse B 1,160 — - 1,160 1,160 480 = = 480 480
Bank loans RITER 167,423 39,444 22,410 229,277 212,468 222,074 45,351 46,412 313,837 291,708
Obligations arising from sale and E£%MERHE4EH
leaseback transactions BE 55,038 35,599 21,138 111,775 104,933 56,066 53,650 53,908 163,624 150,455
Lease liabilities HEAME 227 208 - 435 412 99 79 252 430 365
657,252 79,773 45,937 782,962 757,968 902,556 114,655 108970 1,126,181 1,086,626

BEERBRARAT —BoFEH @
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BxBHBFTHEIN - HUAREFR)
27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk

27

PEABREEREMIANR
F1E (&)

() F=EEMR

The Group's interest rate risk arising primarily from the
bank loans, lease liabilities, payables for acquisition of
equipment by instalments and obligations arising from
sale and leaseback transactions. Borrowings issued at
variable rates and fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

@

Interest rate risk profile

The following table, as reported to the
management of the Group, details the interest rate
risk profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of
the reporting period:

AEBEHMREREZRBRT
ER - -HERE U HMAFKE
AR ) B RIR R B 1R B A2
SEENER  FEHHEREE
FERNEHRD RIS A EEHEERR
TRENERER KR FENERE
2

() RNERREBRHER
oA A £ E R TE PR
& TRAVAKERES
Hﬁﬂiﬁﬁfﬂ*”E’JﬂTH 2 B
D

2022 2021
20226 20214F
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BEEAIE ERFI=
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
% AR®BTR % AREFIT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFMEBEN
Lease liabilities HEBE 5.3-5.5 412 5.3-5.5 365
Obligations arising from sale E#MAER FEE
and leaseback e
transactions 4.8-5.5 104,933 4.8-5.5 150,455
Bank loans and other RITEFREAM
borrowings CEA 2.6-5.4 153,111 4.4-6.4 165,860
Payables for acquisition of LA EAft FREEA
equipment by B0l AN S
instalments 5.3-6.0 22,205 5.3-6.0 51,664
280,661 368,344
Variable rate borrowings: SZEIFIRMER ¢
Bank loans RITEK 5.1-6.1 59,357 5.1-6.1 125,848
Total borrowings a5 340,018 494,192
Fixed rate borrowings as a & & fil & & 3
percentage of total hTE R B
borrowings Aot 82.5% 74.5%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (Continued)
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis
The Group does not account for any fixed rate
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss. Therefore, in respect of the fixed rate
instrument, a change in interest rates at the
reporting date would not affect the profit or loss.

In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest
rate risk arising from floating rate bank loans held
by the Group at the end of the reporting period,
the impact on the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits is estimated as an annualised
impact on interest expense or income of such a
change in interest rates. As at 31 December 2022,
it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of
500 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group's profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately RMB2,523,000 (2021:
RMB5,349,000). The analysis is performed on the
same basis as 2021.

(d) Currency risk
The Group had no significant foreign exchange exposure
as substantially all the Group’s transactions are
denominated in RMB.

(e) Fair value
The carrying amounts of the Group’'s financial

instruments carried at amounts not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

BREREEREMIANLD

15 (&)
(0 FMERER(HE)

(d)

(e)

i) SBESH
AEERGHASBRSE
AT E ENETE LR
(- E - ELTEM

ER STr=F NPT

P - =
CERERS -

il

HRANE B R L SR
BRZEMRBITEREL
MRS RENRRAKWKO -
N & B K B 18 F 8 AR B A
ERTER Ll R EE) Y
REEGHENTEEBRK
AR FE - R2022F128
318 - (At FIREE LA
TRRS00EE L - MATE
HBHERBETE  AEE
Fi 18 7B R AR B FE B R
A/ Hn# AR # 2,523,000
JTL(2021F : AR &
5,349,0007T) ° % 5 #7 2
2021 F D AT ERRE — B -

B E kR
AREEBRILORHUAARKE
FHE - AR E Y EEAINER

LA
STl
2

AFE
20224 k2021412 A318 - &
SEeRMTANEEREZEQY
B EBERDR -

o

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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MRk M et
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (BkZBFTESIN » HAARETIR)
28 COMMITMENTS 28 EE
Commitments outstanding at 31 December 2022 not provided R2022512 8318 » WA EIRK T
for in the financial statements were as follows: REENEAREMAEDT
2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T
Contracted for B &4 — 12,449

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 29 EXBHAERS

(@) Key management personnel remuneration @ FEEBEAEEHMNH
Remuneration for key management personnel of the AREFTESEABZEMN(BE
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s SERATES (BBERMET)
directors as disclosed in Note 7 and certain of the LRETESHEMES (BENW T
highest paid employees as disclosed in Note 8, is as SRR :
follows:

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T AR®EFTT
Short-term employee benefits 52 HiE B a8 A 2,218 2,607
Contributions to retirement benefit iR K48 A5+ EI #t 3%
scheme 39 29
2,257 2,636
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see Note @Rt AT 8 IR A (R
5(b)). 5()) e
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

29 EXBBALEXRS (&)

29 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Other transactions with related parties

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
short-term leases of factory and office premise from two
entities controlled by the controlling shareholder. The
aggregate rental expenses incurred during the vyear
amounted to RMB2,203,000 (2021: RMB2,628,000). The
balances of other payables to the above companies were
RMB1,649,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021:
RMB1,743,000).

Guarantees provided by the Controlling Shareholder
relating to bank loans/facilities and obligations arising
from sale and leaseback transactions were disclosed in
Note 21(a) and Note 21(b) respectively.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any
other material transactions or outstanding balances with
related parties.

The related party transactions above constituted
connected transactions of the Company as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However all of these
transactions are fully exempt from the shareholders’
approval, annual review and all disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

(b)

HEBEINHEHMRS
HE2022F12A31HIEEE - &
B W R A AR R S '
ROBAHERERPRGAT - F
RNEANHEEATAEAEARE
2,203,000 (20214 : A R ¥
2,628,0007T) ° 722022412 A 31
A FE A b A B &) H 4th 30 & 54
A AR1,649,0007T (20214 = A
R #1,743,0007T) °

ZRBEBBITER BMERE
RELRXZELENEBRHER
B 7 B K 7E21(a) K S 5E21(b) 3%

= o

B EXFEBEEIN  AKEYE
EER T ETENEMEARS
TFERGHER -

LR R BB TR AE
VAEMRENARBIRERS °
R MERERZEZEHRR
ETRCORELE  FEEHE LT
RAIEMAEH B RBERTE -

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @
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30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 30

DA B M BRI &R

POSITION
2022 2021
20224 20214
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR%T T ARET T
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—HEBARZIEE 13 196,421 179,782
e A 196,421 | 179,782
Current asset REEE
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEFEY 14,853 122
e A 1485 | 122
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary A —REME AR 2 3IE — 10,554
Other payables and accruals b FE A SRR K AT R 186 113
S R 18 | 10,667
Net current assets/(liabilities) ABEZE (REOFH | 14667 | (10,545)
Non-current liability FERBEE
Amount due to subsidiaries FEHI B AR 2 5B 28,998 =
T A 28998 | T
NET ASSETS EEFRH 182,090 169,237
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXR#HE 26
Share capital fi& A 5,671 5,671
Reserves i 176,419 163,566
TOTAL EQUITY AR 182,090 169,237
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (B BBFTIEIN - HUAARESIR)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING
PARTY

At 31 December 2022, the directors consider the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group to be Mr. Xun Minghong.
As at 31 December 2022, the immediate controlling
shareholder of the Group is MHX Investment Limited, which
was incorporated in the BVI and does not produce financial
statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of new or amended standards,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2022 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These developments include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

31

32

EERRARERAL

MR2022F12 A31H » EERBKREEH
BRI R AR B AE - R20224F
128318 AEBOEEERERA
MHX Investment Limited - 2R E B
BB A S B AR Sl ] (N B AE
Bz iEsRE -

BZE2022F128318LEE
C BB RERBIEET ~ F5T
ZAFREBNEERE

BEZSFMBEHREROTEBRN  FEQ
SR AR ERMGBIRANE E2022512
BB IEFERARERE M AR ZFHNE
WR AR AT BT ER - %F
ERTBYEA T Al BE AN E A RE 2R

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RELT RSk 2 % B%R
METEEX

HKFRS 17, Insurance contracts
wEE A

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements: Classification of liabilities
as current or non-current FETE)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of

FRTBmE

ERIE175%

BETERNBIREBIT R - A%
HEA 25 - BIE

BB ERNBVREBIT R - A%

DERRE

1 January 2023
2023F1 818

1 January 2023
2023F1 818

1 January 2023

financial statements and HKFRS Practice HZH)Z 5 R B EZER 2023%F1H18
Statement 2, Making materiality judgements: B EE 2% (EHEX S
Disclosure of accounting policies & - BABUR R 1% 55

Amendments to HKAS 8, Accounting policies, BRI ERNESRIEETA « 257 1 January 2023
changes in accounting estimates and errors: BR - BE1E5TEERIER & 2023%F1H18
Definition of accounting estimates AT 155 HIEZ

Amendments to HKAS 12, /ncome taxes:
Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities
arising from a single transaction

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.

ER G EAFI12RERT AN - A7
W BE-—XZGELHNEERE
BB BHELHE

1 January 2023
2023F1 818

ZRER B IE ¥ (A TR B B K e P HA A 7%
FEE - R EARRENTE - 2R
A& LE - Hiawm SR MEE T AR e
AEBEHNRERERVBRRAELEKR

X
=

BRERBRERAR —F-_F5H @



FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

AFEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for each of the last five financial years is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12831BLLEE

AEEBEDEAVRFEZTFONREARE
ENBEMEZEHINWT

| 2021 2020 2019 2018
| 20214 20204F 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETTT ARETFT ARETT ARETT
Revenue Uk 2 524,602 1,142,936 1,278,769 1,578,218 1,192,750
Cost of sales S5 & B AR (515,297) | (1,010,923) (990,338)  (1,224,195) (907,228)
Gross profit EF 9,305 132,013 288,431 354,023 285,522
Other net (loss)/ HbF (B518) WA
income (56,114) 51,207 10,176 15,608 1,762
Administrative and TB R H AR SZ
other expenses (62,258) (65,059) (55,299) (67,723) (39,107)
Research and &R
development costs (20,436) (62,889) (41,034) (55,415) (46,579)
Impairment loss on  Z 5 & H b fE U FE
trade and other AR &K EERE
receivables and 518
contract assets (69,954) (138,344) (114,767) (20,808) (15,496)
(Loss)/profit from B (F5R),/FE
operations (199,457) (83,072) 87,507 225,685 186,102
Finance costs b & B A (24,853) (34,898) (18,458) (17,363) 9,121)
(Loss)/profit before BT (EE), /KB
taxation (224,310) (117,970) 69,049 208,322 176,981
Income tax T8t 8,235 24,012 (9,299) (29,082) (36,487)
(Loss)/profit for the R (EE) FH
year (216,075) (93,958) 59,750 179,240 140,494
(Loss)/earnings per SR (F#E) B
share
Basic and diluted EARREE(ARE)
(RMB) (0.35) (0.15) 0.10 0.38 0.30
As at 31 December
M12H31H
| 2021 2020 2019 2018
0224 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
R ARETFTT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Total assets mEE 1,655,131 2,179,054 2,273,919 1,562,000 1,244,978
Total liabilities waE (883,157) | (1,190,544)  (1,180,574) (737,8698) (687,990)
Total equity P 4B RE 771,974 988,510 1,093,345 824,132 556,988
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